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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

JIMMY PATRONIS
STATE OF FLORIDA

February 26, 2021

Citizens of the State of Florida

The Honorable Ron DeSantis, Governor

The Honorable Wilton Simpson, President of the Senate

The Honorable Chris Sprowls, Speaker of the House of Representatives

To the Citizens of Florida, Governor DeSantis, President Simpson, and Speaker Sprowls:

I am pleased to submit the State of Florida’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020, in accordance with Section 216.102(3), Florida Statutes (F.S.). This report is prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report based
upon a comprehensive framework of internal control. The objective of internal control is to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatements. The concept of reasonable assurance
ensures that the costs do not exceed the benefits derived.

The Auditor General has issued an opinion on the state’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The
independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE STATE

Florida’s Constitution divides the governmental structure of the state into three independent branches. The Legislative Branch
has exclusive lawmaking power for the state. The Executive Branch, consisting of the Governor, Cabinet, and their agencies,
administers the laws made by the Legislature. The Governor shares executive power and responsibility with the Cabinet,
which is composed of the Attorney General, Chief Financial Officer, and Commissioner of Agriculture. The Judicial Branch
interprets the law and applies the Constitution. The organizational chart following this letter provides an overview of the
state’s structure. Florida’s government provides a range of services to its citizens including education, health and family
services, transportation, public safety, law and corrections, natural resources and environmental protection.

The financial reporting entity of the state includes the primary government as well as component units for which the state is
either financially accountable or a relationship exists with the state such that exclusion would cause the financial statements
to be misleading. Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for a listing of Florida’s component units and the Financial
Section of the report to obtain an overview of their financial positions.

Florida’s budget is prepared using the processes set forth in Chapter 216, F.S. The major phases of the budget process are
detailed in the Other Required Supplementary Information Section of this report. Florida law strictly prohibits overspending
and requires budgetary control to be maintained at the individual appropriation account level.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
THE CAPITOL, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-0301 « (850) 413-2850 « FAX (850) 413-2950
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ECONOMIC CONDITION

After recording nine consecutive years of positive growth in General Fund collections, Florida moved significantly into
negative territory as the state’s fiscal year ended on June 30, 2020. By coincidence, the National Bureau of Economic
Research (NBER) announced in the same month that the peak in the current business cycle occurred in February 2020,
marking the end of the longest economic expansion on record and placing the United States into a declared recession. While
all Florida industries have been impacted in the near term by the pandemic-induced economic contraction, Florida’s leisure
and hospitality industry has borne the brunt of the longer-term consequences. The key drivers underlying the Florida-specific
forecasts are discussed in greater detail below and show the sharp delineation between pre-pandemic and post-onset
conditions.

Fluctuations in the state’s Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) data provide the best evidence of Florida’s economic turmoil.
Prior to the onset of the pandemic, the state’s GDP for the 2019 calendar year showed positive growth that had slowed
slightly from the prior year, but remained above the national average for the seventh consecutive year. With the beginning of
the new year, circumstances changed. Even though the state’s first two cases were not officially confirmed by the Department
of Health until March 2™, Florida’s GDP declined by 4.3 percent at a seasonally adjusted annual rate in the first quarter of the
2020 calendar year (January, February and March 2020) as the virus spread throughout the rest of the United States. During
the second quarter (April, May and June 2020), state and local governments undertook stringent protective measures, causing
the state’s GDP to plunge 30.1 percent, nearly matching the rate for the nation as a whole. Newly released GDP data for the
third quarter of 2020 (July, August and September), when the reopening began in earnest, came in at +33.4 percent, exactly
matching the rate for the United States. Even so, given the overall soaring numbers among states during this quarter, Florida’s
real growth at a seasonally adjusted annual rate only ranked 27th in the country. The latest Economic Estimating Conference
projections are for -0.5 percent growth for the just completed 2019-20 fiscal year and +0.5 percent for the current fiscal year.
The latest forecast then shows a 2.0 percent increase for the 2021-22 fiscal year and a subsequent return to the positive 2.2 to
2.8 percent range more typically found in Florida.

State employment conditions reveal a similar story. The job market in Florida experienced an unprecedented contraction in
the second quarter of 2020 when many businesses either shut down or sent workers home to slow the spread of the
coronavirus. Prior to that quarter, Florida’s unemployment rate had dropped to 2.8 percent in January and February 2020,
which, together with November 2019, became the months with the lowest recorded unemployment rates since the series
began in 1976. With the onset of the pandemic, the unemployment rate spiked to 13.8 percent in April 2020, handily
surpassing the prior peak rate of 11.3 percent experienced in January 2010 during the Great Recession. The change was
breathtaking. Over the space of two months, the unemployment rate shifted from a near 50-year low to a near 50-year high.
The Economic Estimating Conference believes that the unemployment rate peaked in the last quarter of the state’s 2019-20
fiscal year at 13.8 percent and expects it to drop gradually to 5.8 percent by the last quarter of this fiscal year. Thereafter, the
rate continues its slow downward drift until it plateaus at 3.7 percent from fiscal year 2025-26 through fiscal year 2027-28,
moving in unison with the national rate and near the full-employment level of about 4 percent. In a related manner,
employment dropped by nearly 1.2 million jobs from February 2020 to April 2020, a decline of 13.0 percent. As of
November, Florida had regained 694,700 jobs out of the 1,178,100 million lost, or about 59 percent. After a 1.0 percent
decline in the 2019-20 fiscal year, the Conference expects total non-farm employment to decline by 0.8 percent in the
2020-21 fiscal year and then rebound by 4.3 percent in the 2021-22 fiscal year. Given the unique circumstances wrought by
the pandemic, jobs in leisure and hospitality are not expected to reach pre-pandemic levels until the 2023-24 fiscal year.

Prior to the confirmation of Florida’s first cases, key state analysts had begun to develop potential scenarios for the possible
course of the disease and its economic impact to the state. Over the summer months, the state’s official estimating
conferences met for the first time as collegial bodies to formally adopt forecasts based on the most likely path offered by
those scenarios. After adopting new economic and population forecasts, the Revenue Estimating Conference convened in
August 2020 to make substantial adjustments to the pre-pandemic forecast adopted in January 2020. Anticipated revenues
were revised downward by $3.4 billion for the 2020-21 fiscal year and by $2.0 billion for the upcoming 2021-22 fiscal year,
for a two-year combined decrease of $5.4 billion. Shortly after the adoption of that forecast, consumers escalated the
redirection of spending from the hard-hit service sector to purchases of goods, with some consumers also spending down the
atypically large savings that built up during the pandemic. In addition, record low interest rates resulting from the Federal
Reserve’s actions to stem the severity of the pandemic’s economic disruption triggered a surge in home buying and
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refinancing. Reflecting these rapidly evolving events, revenue collections gained slightly over $1.0 billion to the Conference
expectations through November.

The Conference met again in December. Because the continuing risk to the forecast was still high due to the pandemic-
induced economic effects on Florida’s tourism-sensitive economy, it largely banked the year-to-date overage and assumed
that the rest of the year would perform in accordance with the prior forecast. Anticipated revenues were revised upward by
nearly $1.5 billion in the 2020-21 fiscal year and by $623 million in the 2021-22 fiscal year, for a two-year combined
increase of $2.1 billion—restoring 39.0 percent of the $5.4 billion reduction taken in August. Overshadowing the positive
aspects of the new forecast, the Conference was aware that the outbreak had recently intensified and, in so doing, introduced
new risks to the forecast.

These risks are most acute for the sales tax forecast. As the pandemic took hold, sales tax collections plunged, falling by just
over $1.6 billion from the estimate for the last quarter of the state’s 2019-20 fiscal year. A large part of the loss was related to
declines in the tourism and hospitality-related industries. This is because Florida’s tourism-sensitive economy is particularly
vulnerable to the longer-term effects of the pandemic. Previous economic studies of disease outbreaks have shown that it can
take as much as twelve to fifteen months after the outbreak ends for tourism to return to pre-disease levels. The magnitude of
this event is greater. The total number of tourists declined 60.3 percent from the prior year in the second quarter of 2020.
After that historic decline, tourism in the third quarter managed to recover to 35.4 percent of the prior year’s level, buttressed
by the stronger than anticipated number of domestic visitors travelling by car. Several industry groups have already predicted
that it will take at least two years to reach recovery from this pandemic. Current expectations are that leisure driving
vacations will recover first, and then—in order—business travel, domestic air travel, and international travel. The timing will
be further influenced by the actual course of the disease and the recovery from the global recession. Bearing this in mind, the
Economic Estimating Conference expects a continued contraction during the 2020-21 fiscal year, with a projected overall
decline of 16.4 percent from the already suppressed 2019-20 level. Even nascent recovery in this industry is strongly linked
to the widespread distribution of a vaccine. Since the Conference expects an effective vaccine to be widely deployed by the
end of the 2020-21 fiscal year, the annual growth rate surges thereafter, albeit from an extremely low level. The new forecast
levels never exceed pre-pandemic forecast levels, but come close towards the end of the ten-year forecast horizon.

According to the state’s Long-Range Financial Outlook adopted in September 2020, the state is anticipating a large budget
gap for the upcoming 2021-22 fiscal year, meaning the projected revenues will not meet all anticipated needs. At the time the
report was adopted by the state’s Legislative Budget Commission, the gap was projected to be as large as $2,977.4 million,
but with certain specified revenue adjustments could be reduced to $2,749.9 million. Since the release of that document, a
new round of estimating conferences has been held which generally improved the revenue outlook, but substantially
increased the expected expenditures for programs such as Medicaid. In addition, the Long-Range Financial Outlook identifies
potential future obligations of the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund and Citizens Property Insurance Corporation as
significant risks to the forecast. Refer to Note 14 to the financial statements for additional information related to the state’s
insurance enterprises.
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

------------ Claude Denson Pepper Building, Suite G74
Sherrill F. Norman, CPA 111 West Madison Street Phone: (850) 412-2722
Auditor General Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 Fax: (850) 488-6975

The President of the Senate, the Speaker of the
House of Representatives, and the
Legislative Auditing Committee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of:

o The Prepaid College Program Fund, which is a major enterprise fund and represents 34 percent
and 9 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business-type activities.

e The Florida Turnpike System, which represents 80 percent and 89 percent, respectively, of the
assets and revenues of the Transportation major enterprise fund.

e The Hurricane Catastrophe Fund, which is a major enterprise fund and represents 28 percent and
9 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business-type activities.

e The College Savings Plan and the trust fund maintained by the State Board of Administration to
account for the investments of the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program, which
collectively represent 6 percent of the assets and 3 percent of the revenues/additions of the
aggregate remaining fund information.



e The Florida Retirement System Trust Fund maintained by the State Board of Administration to
account for the assets and investment income of the Florida Retirement System Defined Benefit
Pension Plan which represent 91 percent and 48 percent, respectively, of the assets and
additions of the Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds.

e The Florida Housing Finance Corporation, Citizens Property Insurance Corporation, component
units related to the State’s universities and colleges, and certain other funds and entities that, in
the aggregate, represent 63 percent and 36 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of
the discretely presented component units.

The financial statements for the above-listed funds and entities were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for
these funds and entities, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our unmodified and qualified audit opinions.



Summary of Opinions

Opinion Unit Type of Opinion

Governmental Activities Unmodified
Business-Type Activities Qualified

Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units Unmodified
General Fund Unmodified
Natural Resources, Environment, and Growth Management Fund Unmodified
Public Education Fund Unmodified
Health and Family Services Fund Unmodified
Governmental - Transportation Fund Unmodified
Proprietary - Transportation Fund Unmodified
Lottery Fund Unmodified
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund Unmodified
Prepaid College Program Fund Unmodified
Reemployment Assistance Fund Qualified

Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unmodified

Basis for Qualified Opinions on Business-Type Activities and Reemployment Assistance Fund

During the fourth quarter of the 2019-20 fiscal year, Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (FDEO)
management bypassed a key Reemployment Assistance Claims and Benefits Information System
(RA System) internal control to expedite unemployment insurance (Ul) benefit payments, thereby
increasing the risk of improper Ul benefit payments and undetected material misstatements. According
to FDEO records, 2,365,513 initial Ul benefit claims were processed through the key RA System internal
control and benefit payments totaling $8,921,910,565 were recorded during the period March 16, 2020,
through June 30, 2020. However, despite the surge in Ul benefit claims and RA System processing
limitations that necessitated the bypass, FDEO records indicated that only 137,195 Ul benefit claims,
with associated payments totaling $623,028,301, bypassed the key internal control during the period
March 16, 2020, through June 30, 2020. Because of this, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to conclude that the Receivables, net, Operating Revenues — Other, and Net
Position — Restricted for Reemployment Assistance in the Reemployment Assistance Fund were free
from material misstatement. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) require that an asset and a revenue be recognized for the amount of Ul benefit payments
expected to be reclaimed when eligibility requirements are no longer met and that net position be
restricted when constraints on use are either imposed by laws or regulations of other governments or
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The amount by which these
GAAP departures would affect the Reemployment Assistance Fund’'s Receivables, net, Operating
Revenues — Other, and Net Position — Restricted for Reemployment Assistance and, consequently, the
Business-Type Activities has not been determined.



Qualified Opinions

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinions on
Business-Type Activities and Reemployment Assistance Fund” paragraph, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
Business-Type Activities and Reemployment Assistance Fund of the State of Florida, as of
June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Unmodified Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities; the aggregate discretely presented component units; the General Fund; Natural Resources,
Environment, and Growth Management Fund; Public Education Fund; Health and Family Services Fund;
Transportation Governmental Fund; Transportation Proprietary Fund; Lottery Fund; Hurricane
Catastrophe Fund; Prepaid College Program Fund; and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
State of Florida, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 19 through 25 and the budgetary information, funding and contribution
information for pension and other postemployment benefits, and information on infrastructure using the
modified approach on pages 184 through 200 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The Introductory Section on pages 6 through 9 and the
combining and individual fund statements, related budgetary comparison schedules, and Statistical
Section on pages 204 through 323 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and related budgetary comparison schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and



other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
statements and related budgetary comparison schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as
described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the combining and individual fund statements and
related budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The Introductory Section and the Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 26, 2021, on our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, administrative rules, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the State’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the State’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. That report
will be included as part of our separately issued report entitled State of Florida Compliance and Internal
Controls Over Financial Reporting and Federal Awards.

Respectfully submitted,

\Sasie s F lopaes

Sherrill F. Norman, CPA
Tallahassee, Florida
February 26, 2021
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The information contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) introduces the basic financial statements
and provides an analytical overview of the State of Florida’s (the state’s) financial activities and performance for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020 (fiscal year 2019-20). Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the state’s financial statements that are
presented in the Financial Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

Financial Statements Overview
The state’s basic financial statements are comprised of the following elements:

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the state's overall financial
condition. Changes in the state’s financial position may be measured over time by increases and decreases in the Statement of
Net Position. Information on how the state’s net position changed during the fiscal year is presented in the Statement of
Activities. Financial information for the state’s component units is also presented.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements for governmental and proprietary funds focus on individual parts of the state, reporting the state's
operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. Fund financial statements for fiduciary funds are also
included to provide financial information related to the state’s fiduciary activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the
government-wide and fund financial statements. Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for more information on the
elements of the financial statements. Table 1 below summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements.

Table 1: Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Fund Financial Statements

Financial Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope Instances in which the state is
the trustee or agent for

someone else’s resources

Activities of the state that are
operated similar to private
businesses

Activities of the state that are
not proprietary or fiduciary

Entire state government
(except fiduciary funds) and
the state’s component units

Balance sheet .
Statement of revenues, .
expenditures, and

changes in fund balances

Required financial + Statement of net position ¢
statements + Statement of activities .

Statement of net position
Statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in
net position

» Statement of cash flows

+ Statement of fiduciary net
position

 Statement of changes in
fiduciary net position

Accounting basis and
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting
and current financial
resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Type of asset, liability, and
deferred outflow/inflow
information

Type of inflow/outflow
information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

* Only assets expected to
be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter;
no capital assets included

+ All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

¢ All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

* All deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of
resources

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid

» Revenues for which cash

is received during or soon

after the end of the year

» Expenditures when goods
or services have been
received and payment is
due during the year or
soon thereafter

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid
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Condensed Government-wide Financial Statements and Overall Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Position

Table 2 below presents the state’s Condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2020, and 2019, derived from the
government-wide Statement of Net Position. The state’s net position at the close of the fiscal year was $69.7 billion for
governmental activities and $29.5 billion for business-type activities which was a combined total of $99.2 billion for the
primary government. The three components of net position include net investments in capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted. The largest component, totaling $87 billion as of June 30, 2020, reflects net investments in capital assets. The
state uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens and businesses in the state; consequently, this component of net
position is not available for future spending. Restricted net position is the next largest component, totaling $26.7 billion as of
June 30, 2020. Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions, constitutional provisions, or
enabling legislation on how they can be used.

Governmental activities reflect a negative or deficit fund balance in unrestricted net position of $15.5 billion at June 30, 2020.
This deficit primarily results from education-related bonds for which the state is responsible for the liability while the related
assets are owned by local school districts and are therefore not included in the state’s financial statements. Refer to Note 8§ to
the financial statements, Governmental Activities — Unrestricted Net Position Deficit, for more information.

Business-type activities reflect a restricted net position of $16.6 billion at June 30, 2020, a decrease of $2.1 billion over the
prior year. The decrease in the restricted net position over that reported in prior years is explained in the Major Fund Analysis,
Proprietary Funds section that follows.

Table 2: Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of June 30

(in millions)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Current and other assets $ 34,148 $ 29,069 $ 39,440 $ 41,489 $ 73,588 $ 70,558
Capital assets, net 81,110 78,538 15,236 14,141 96,346 92,679
Total assets 115,258 107,607 54,676 55,630 169,934 163,237
Total deferred outflows of resources 5,023 4,115 122 103 5,145 4218
Other liabilities 8,712 3,889 9,450 3,764 18,162 7,653
Noncurrent liabilities 39,060 38,156 15,639 20,975 54,699 59,131
Total liabilities 47,772 42,045 25,089 24,739 72,861 66,784
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,839 2,854 215 220 3,054 3,074
Net position
Net investments in capital assets 75,163 72,832 12,022 10,934 87,185 83,766
Restricted 10,057 10,232 16,627 18,702 26,684 28,934
Unrestricted (15,550)  (16,241) 845 1,138 (14,705)  (15,103)
Total net position $ 69,670 $ 66,823 § 29,494 $ 30,774 § 99,164 § 97,597
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Statement of Activities

Table 3 presents the state’s Condensed Statement of Activities for fiscal year 2019-20 and fiscal year 2018-19, as derived from
the government-wide Statement of Activities. Over time, increases and decreases in the net position measure whether the
state’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. The state’s total net position increased during the fiscal year by

$1.6 billion. The net position of governmental activities increased by $2.8 billion, and the net position of business-type
activities decreased by $1.3 billion. The majority of the increase in total program expenses for governmental activities relates
to a $1.7 billion increase in General Government expense after $2.8 billion increase in Human Services expenses, while the
largest increase in business-type activities expenses is the $8.8 billion increase in Reemployment Assistance program expenses.
Refer to the Major Fund Analysis section for information regarding the overall increase in revenues from governmental
activities.

Table 3: Condensed Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(in millions)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 8,184 $ 8571 $ 12,141 $ 12,973 $ 20,325 $ 21,544
Operating grants and contributions 34,671 29,280 6,847 5 41,518 29,285
Capital grants and contributions 2,077 2,310 14 13 2,091 2,323
Total program revenues 44932 40,161 19,002 12,991 63,934 53,152
General revenues and payments
Sales and use tax 26,936 27,999 — — 26,936 27,999
Other taxes 14,064 14,678 — — 14,064 14,678
Investment earnings (loss) 887 662 11 13 898 675
Miscellaneous — — 3 3 3 3
Total general revenues and payments 41,887 43,339 14 16 41,901 43,355
Total revenues 86,819 83,500 19,016 13,007 105,835 96,507
Program expenses
General government 9,615 7,881 — — 9,615 7,881
Education 23,297 23,157 — — 23,297 23,157
Human services 39,400 36,579 — — 39,400 36,579
Criminal justice and corrections 5,179 4,829 — — 5,179 4,829
Natural resources and environment 3,187 3,291 — — 3,187 3,291
Transportation 4,301 4,394 843 774 5,144 5,168
Judicial branch 695 621 — — 695 621
Lottery — — 5,653 5,234 5,653 5,234
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — — 1,556 4,019 1,556 4,019
Prepaid College Program — — 899 1,016 899 1,016
Reemployment Assistance — — 9,191 386 9,191 386
Nonmajor enterprise funds — — 389 407 389 407
Indirect interest on long term debt 67 38 — — 67 38
Total program expenses 85,741 80,790 18,531 11,836 104,272 92,626
Excess (deficiency) before gain (loss) and
transfers 1,078 2,710 485 1,171 1,563 3,881
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 5 (290) (1 2) 4 (292)
Transfers 1,763 1,865 (1,763) (1,865) — —
Change in net position 2,846 4,285 (1,279) (696) 1,567 3,589
Beginning net position, as restated (Note 1) 66,824 62,538 30,773 31,470 97,597 94,008
Ending net position $ 69,670 $ 66,823 $ 29,494 § 30,774 $ 99,164 $ 97,597
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Major Fund Analysis

Governmental Funds

The state’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $20.6 billion at June 30, 2020, a $458 million or
2.3 percent increase from the prior year. Revenues increased by $3.6 billion or 4.3 percent, other financing sources and uses
decreased by $109 million or 3.5 percent, and expenditures increased by $4.9 billion or 5.8 percent. Overall increases in
revenues and expenditures were primarily attributable to a rise in grants and donations.

Proprietary Funds

The state’s proprietary funds report combined ending net position of $29.5 billion at June 30, 2020, of which $12.0 billion is the
net investment in capital assets, and $16.6 billion is restricted for specific purposes. The remaining $845 million was
unrestricted and available for purposes of the various funds. Information is provided below regarding major funds with
significant variances relative to the prior year.

Lottery — This fund reported a net position of $89 million at June 30, 2020, an increase of $4 million or 4.8 percent. Assets
increased $189.7 million or 28.1 percent while liabilities increased $185.7 million or 31.4 percent. Assets increased primarily
due to increases in receivables and pooled investments with State Treasury. Liabilities increased primarily due to increases in
amounts owed to prizewinners and the Education Enhancement Trust Fund.

Reemployment Assistance — This fund reported a net position of $2.3 billion at June 30, 2020, a decrease of $1.8 billion or
44.1 percent. Revenues increased by $6.8 billion or 1,148.7 percent while expenses and operating transfers out increased by
$8.8 billion or 2,210.6 percent. Revenues increased as result of the COVID-19 pandemic during the fiscal year. The
increase in expenses and operating transfers out were due to higher reemployment assistance during the COVID-19
pandemic.

Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — The net position at June 30, 2020, totaled $10.4 billion, an increase of $64 million or 0.6
percent. Liabilities decreased $1.5 billion or 23 percent while expenditures decreased by $2.5 billion or 62 percent due to no
additional hurricane loss events attributable to the Fund occurring in fiscal year ending 2020 and the estimate of the ultimate
loss for Hurricane Irma not increasing as much as in prior fiscal years.

Prepaid College Program — The net position at June 30, 2020, totaled $3.6 billion, a decrease of $134 million or 3.6 percent.
Revenues decreased by $998.5 million or 56.6 percent. The decrease in revenues and net position was primarily due to the
$719 million rollback refund in January 2020 and the impacts of COVID-19 related decisions, one of which was the extension
and deferment of all contract payments for three months.

General Fund Budget Variances

Budgeted expenditures are based on revenues estimated by the Revenue Estimating Conference and other sources. Original
expenditures are budgeted for less than total expected available resources. There was a $26 million decrease between the
original and final estimated revenues. Final budgeted total expenditures increased by $1 billion from the original budget.
Variances between the original and final budget or between the final budgeted and actual amounts are not expected to
significantly affect future services or liquidity. For additional information on the budget variances, refer to the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule for the General Fund in the Other Required Supplementary Information section of the CAFR.

Capital Asset and Long-term Debt Activity

Capital Asset Activity

At June 30, 2020, the state reported $81.1 billion in net capital assets for governmental activities and $15.2 billion in net capital
assets for business-type activities. Net capital assets for governmental and business-type activities increased from fiscal year
2018-19 to fiscal year 2019-20 by approximately 4.0 percent. The increase is primarily due to the capitalization of construction
costs for infrastructure projects. Capitalized infrastructure projects include additions to and/or enhancements of roadways and
bridges on the state’s highway system. Construction commitments by the Florida Department of Transportation were
approximately $12.8 billion. Construction commitments by other state agencies for major projects including office buildings
and correctional facilities decreased by $81 million compared to the prior year. Refer to Note 5 to the financial statements for
information on capital assets and Note 7 to the financial statements for information on construction commitments.

Long-term Debt Activity

Total bonded debt outstanding decreased by $1.6 billion, or approximately 8.5 percent, from the prior fiscal year to a total of
$17.1 billion at June 30, 2020 due to new debt issued being less than scheduled amortization and debt service payments. The
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majority of the outstanding bonded debt serves to finance educational facilities ($8.9 billion), the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe
Fund ($1.7 billion) and transportation ($5 billion). New and refinanced bonded debt issues for 2020 totaled $2.0 billion.
Public-Private Partnership (PPP) contracts outstanding increased from the prior year by $84 million or 2.9 percent to a total of
$2.8 billion. The annual debt service requirements increased from $2 billion in 2019 to $2.3 billion in 2020. The increase in
debt service in Fiscal Year 2020 reflected the impact of PPP payments. The annual debt service is projected to decrease to
approximately $2.3 billion though Fiscal Year 2022, then continue to decrease to approximately $1.8 billion in Fiscal Year
2023, reflecting the payment obligations for the PPP I-395 and I-4 Projects.

Pursuant to the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 — Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, the State of Florida recorded $8.8 billion in
pension liabilities for the defined benefit plans it administers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The $8.8 billion includes
the State’s proportionate share of the liability for the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan, the Retiree Health Insurance
Subsidy Program, and the Florida National Guard Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan. (See Note 6 to the Financial
Statements for further information.)

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, the State of Florida recorded $9.2 billion in other postemployment benefits liabilities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020. This resulted in a increase of $1.4 billion or 17.4 percent. (See Note 6 to the Financial Statements for
further information.)

The state maintained its credit ratings during the past year. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, all three major rating
agencies (Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, Fitch Ratings and Moody's Investors Services) rated the state in the highest rating
category and have affirmed the State’s AAA general obligation rating and Stable outlooks. The state’s benchmark debt ratio
increased in Fiscal Year 2020 to 5.49 percent and is projected to remain below the 6 percent policy target for the foreseeable
future.

Section 11 of Article VII of the State Constitution authorizes the state to issue general obligation bonds or revenue bonds to
finance or refinance fixed capital outlay projects authorized by law. General obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and
credit of the state and payable from specified taxes. Revenue bonds are payable solely from specified revenues. The
responsibility to issue most state bonds rests with the Division of Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration.
However, certain quasi-governmental entities also incur debt and are reported as part of the primary government. See the State
of Florida 2020 Debt Report for more detailed information about the state’s debt position. The report can be found at
www.sbafla.com/bondfinance or by contacting the Division of Bond Finance, 1801 Hermitage Boulevard, Suite 200,
Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850) 488-4782. Additional information on long-term debt is also found in Notes 6, 8, 9, and 10 to
the financial statements and the Statistical Section of this report.

Infrastructure Accounted for Using the Modified Approach

The state elected to use the modified approach to account for roadways, bridges, and other infrastructure assets of the State
Highway System. Under this approach, the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) committed to maintain these assets
at levels established by FDOT and approved by the Florida Legislature. No depreciation expense is reported for these assets,
nor are amounts capitalized in connection with improvements that lengthen the lives of such assets, unless the improvements
also increase their service potential. FDOT maintains an inventory of these assets and performs periodic assessments to
establish that predetermined condition levels are being maintained. The condition assessments performed during fiscal year
2019-20 show that the roadways and bridges of the State Highway System are being maintained at or near FDOT standards.
These condition assessments were consistent with condition assessments conducted during past years. In addition, FDOT
makes annual estimates of the amounts that must be expended to maintain the roadways and bridges included on the State
Highway System at the predetermined condition levels. These estimates are based on the FDOT five-year plan that is revised as
projects are added, deleted, adjusted, or postponed. Refer to the Other Required Supplementary Information of the CAFR for
information on FDOT’s established condition standards, recent condition assessments, and other information on infrastructure
reported on the modified approach.

Economic Factors

The national economy contracted at its greatest rate in postwar history during the second quarter of the calendar year (April,
May and June 2020) as unprecedented shutdowns closed businesses and left millions of Americans out of work during the
pandemic. As a result of the pandemic-induced economic contraction, General Fund tax collections for the state’s fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020, came in 6.1 percent lower than the prior fiscal year, the largest year-over-year decline since the worst
years of the Great Recession (the 2007-08 and 2008-09 fiscal years). Prior to the pandemic, the state had been expecting a

0.5 percent decline in final collections that was related to the known loss of the Indian Gaming revenue share payment. The
last payment from the Seminole Tribe was received in April 2019. Because formal stay-at-home orders were in place statewide
for a significant part of the last quarter of the state’s fiscal year and are not anticipated to be reinstated, the negative growth rate
for fiscal year 2019-20 is not projected to continue into future years. The state’s official forecast contains elevated annual
growth rates after the expected widespread distribution of a vaccine early in the 2021-22 fiscal year that gradually drop back to
the 3.5 percent annual growth projected for the long run.
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A significant portion (38.8 percent) of the year-over-year net decline in General Fund receipts (total revenue minus refunds)
came from the loss in sales tax collections. Over the past 15 years, this revenue source’s share of the fund has grown from

70.6 percent in fiscal year 2004-05 to 78.4 percent in fiscal year 2019-20, which means that even a modest reduction in
collections from the prior year translates into a nontrivial dollar loss. As the economy faltered during the pandemic, total sales
tax liability declined 3.2 percent from fiscal year 2018-19 to fiscal year 2019-20, with four of the state’s six sales tax categories
used for reporting purposes (nondurables, tourism and recreation, autos and accessories, and other durables) showing negative
growth over the prior year. This equates to an $888.7 million retreat from the prior year’s level for this source, of which

$794.0 million impacted the General Fund. Because the state’s Revenue Estimating Conference had previously expected sales
tax growth of 3.2 percent, the loss from that estimate was even greater—nearly $1.6 billion or 6.1 percent from the anticipated
level.

In addition to sales tax, collections of three other general fund sources were materially affected by the state’s Safer at Home
orders or other limitations on activity: article V fees and transfers; beverage taxes; and pari-mutuel taxes. The loss in article V
fees was largely related to the closure of courts and various other state and local government offices, as well as federal and state
actions to provide forbearance on delinquent payments and foreclosures. Reduced collections of beverage taxes were caused
by activity limitations on bars and restaurants, while reduced collections of pari-mutuel taxes were caused by the temporary
closure of those facilities.

Altogether, nearly two-thirds of the state’s general fund sources posted losses over the prior year, with four of those sources
(corporate income tax; highway safety fees; corporate filing fees; and other taxes, licenses and fees) affected by formal state
orders delaying payment of the applicable taxes or fees until June 2020 or later. Prior to the onset of the pandemic, each of
these revenue sources had been coming in close to or over the monthly estimates adopted by the state’s Revenue Estimating
Conference. While a portion of the induced losses had begun to be recaptured in June 2020, final recoupment spilled over into
the next fiscal year.

Rather than harmed, several revenue sources performed better than expected or benefited from government actions to provide
relief and support during the first crucial stage of the pandemic. Among these sources, collections of both the documentary
stamp and intangibles taxes rely predominantly on activity in the state’s real estate market. To provide an important firewall
between the turmoil in the economy at-large and the financial system, the Federal Reserve aggressively instituted rate cuts to
near-zero percent, backstopped credit markets and created new facilities to buy corporate debt. One result was record low
interest rates that set off a surge of home buying and refinancing. This market environment enabled total documentary stamp
tax collections to experience 8.4 percent growth in fiscal year 2019-20 over fiscal year 2018-19, despite dampened activity after
the imposition of the first Safer at Home order. Total collections from this source finally ended the year at 70.8 percent of the
peak level in fiscal year 2005-06, an improvement over prior years. Reflecting a slightly different aspect of the market,
intangibles tax collections, which entirely benefit the General Fund, strengthened as refinancing activity surged in response to
the low interest rates, ultimately posting a 28.0 percent gain over the prior year.

Similarly, Earnings on Investments benefited from the enactment of federal legislation to provide relief during the pandemic.
One such law, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security [CARES] Act, provided substantial federal government
support to individuals, businesses, hospitals, and specific industries dealing with the pandemic and its associated economic
consequences. [Public Law No: 116-136; enacted 03/27/2020] Among other things, the legislation created the Coronavirus
Relief Fund within the U.S. Department of the Treasury to fund necessary state and local government expenditures incurred due
to the COVID-19 public health emergency. Florida’s total allocation was $8,328.2 million, of which $2,472.4 million was
distributed by the U.S. Department of the Treasury directly to Florida local governments with populations greater than 500,000.
The remaining $5,855.8 million was transferred to the State of Florida and deposited in the state treasury. The large cash
infusion into the General Fund and the resulting temporary increase in the state’s daily balance produced unanticipated
opportunities for investment earnings that contributed to a 65.2 percent gain over the prior year.

The remaining revenue sources were either only marginally affected by the negative effects of the Coronavirus outbreak or
behaved as forecast by the state’s Revenue Estimating Conference prior to the pandemic. At the end of the 2019-20 state fiscal
year, net General Fund collections ended with a loss from the estimate for the General Revenue Fund of nearly $1.9 billion,
down 5.7 percent from the estimate adopted in January 2020 when the last pre-pandemic forecast was made.

The Revenue Estimating Conference met in December 2020 to revise the General Fund forecast for fiscal years 2020-21 and
2021-22. Through November, revenue collections had gained slightly over $1.0 billion to the Conference expectations at its
prior meeting, with reason to believe that December collections would add to the overage. Because the continuing risk to the
forecast is still high due to the pandemic-induced economic effects on Florida’s tourism-sensitive economy, the Revenue
Estimating Conference largely banked the year-to-date overage and assumed that the rest of the year would perform in
accordance with the prior forecast. As a result, the Conference made sizeable adjustments to the forecast adopted in
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August 2020. Anticipated revenues were revised upward by nearly $1.5 billion in fiscal year 2020-21 and by $623 million in
fiscal year 2021-22, for a two-year combined increase of $2.1 billion—restoring 39.0 percent of the $5.4 billion reduction taken

in August. These changes reflect increases over the previous estimates of 4.8 percent in fiscal year 2020-21 and 1.8 percent in
fiscal year 2021-22.

As a buffer against the ongoing financial shock wrought by the pandemic, the latest General Revenue Outlook shows that there
will be $1,947.0 million in unallocated general revenue remaining at the end of the current fiscal year. In addition, the state’s
major reserve for emergencies, the Budget Stabilization Fund, has a planned balance of $1,674.2 million. The fund cash
balance is now at the highest recorded level in its history. The other source most frequently mentioned as part of the state’s
informal reserve system is the Lawton Chiles Endowment Fund (LCEF). The LCEF had an estimated market value of $862.0
million as of September 30, 2020, bringing the total of all reserves to $4,483.2 million or 13.8 percent of the state’s estimated
General Fund tax collections for the current year (after payment of refunds). According to the state’s Long-Range Financial
Outlook adopted in September 2020, the state is anticipating a large budget gap for the upcoming fiscal year (2021-22),
meaning the projected revenues will not meet all anticipated needs. At the time the report was adopted by the state’s
Legislative Budget Commission, the gap was projected to be as large as $2,977.4 million, but with certain specified revenue
adjustments could be reduced to $2,749.9 million. Since the release of that document, a new round of estimating conferences

has been held which generally improved the revenue outlook but substantially increased the expected expenditures for programs
such as Medicaid.

Contact the State’s Financial Management

Questions about this report or requests for additional financial information may be addressed to:

Department of Financial Services
Bureau of Financial Reporting
Statewide Financial Reporting Section
200 East Gaines Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0364
(850) 413-5511
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Totals Units
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,169 $ 46,156  $ 118,325  $ 2,315,239
Pooled investments with State Treasury 22,778,300 4,048,567 26,826,867 3,648,571
Other investments 1,388,044 30,848,848 32,236,892 17,358,197
Receivables, net 5,612,678 2,119,581 7,732,259 2,094,123
Internal balances 368,802 (368,802) — —
Due from component units/primary 13,050 500 13,550 558,699
Inventories 45,750 11,793 57,543 117,437
Restricted cash and cash equivalents — 156 156 558,049
Restricted pooled investments with State Treasury — 204,890 204,890 879,036
Restricted investments — 571,833 571,833 7,021,147
Advances to other entities 792,217 — 792,217 —
Other loans and notes receivable, net 3,074,129 1,913,677 4,987,806 2,323,901
Other assets 2,294 42,413 44,707 719,516
Capital assets, net 81,110,399 15,236,069 96,346,468 26,645,952
Total assets 115,257,832 54,675,681 169,933,513 64,239,867
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accum. decrease in fair value - hedging derivatives — — — 73,571
Grants paid in advance — — — 15
Amount deferred on refunding of debt 88,979 25,304 114,283 56,032
Pension-related items 3,506,810 57,279 3,564,089 1,586,666
Other postemployment benefits 1,426,951 39,760 1,466,711 658,289
Asset retirement obligations — — — 8,883
Total deferred outflows of resources 5,022,740 122,343 5,145,083 2,383,456
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,030,724 2,124,850 5,155,574 2,663,336
Due to other governments — 11,552 11,552 —
Due to component units/primary 70,080 431 70,511 76,386
Obligations under security lending agreements 1,602,500 2,529,535 4,132,035 —
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 4,008,740 4,783,717 8,792,457 2,256,992
Due in more than one year 39,059,709 15,638,479 54,698,188 17,539,201
Total liabilities 47,771,753 25,088,564 72,860,317 22,535,915
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts — 134,632 134,632 114,186
Grants received in advance — — — 1,535
Amount deferred on refunding of debt 99,647 16,625 116,272 2,361
Pension-related items 878,419 16,003 894,422 403,043
Other postemployment benefits liability 1,860,536 48,029 1,908,565 595,704
Irrevocable split-interest agreements — — — 57,815
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,838,602 215,289 3,053,891 1,174,644
NET POSITION
Net investments in capital assets 75,163,014 12,022,039 87,185,053 22,316,177
Restricted for
Natural resources, environment, and growth management 4,170,683 — 4,170,683 —
Public Education 405,676 — 405,676 —
Health and Family Services 1,781,785 — 1,781,785 —
Transportation 1,698,367 249,847 1,948,214 —
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,269,395 — 1,269,395 —
Debt service 30,391 — 30,391 42,874
Lottery — 139,270 139,270 —
Prepaid College Program — 3,566,380 3,566,380 —
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — 10,351,755 10,351,755 —
Reemployment Assistance — 2,318,051 2,318,051 —
Other 700,498 2,132 702,630 8,073,342
Funds held for permanent endowment
Expendable — — — 1,030,666
Nonexpendable — — — 3,687,250
Unrestricted (15,549,592) 844,697 (14,704,895) 7,761,955
Total net position $ 69,670,217  $ 29,494,171  § 99,164,388  $ 42,912,764

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

Program Revenues

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government $ 9,614,755  $ 4,631,524  § 4,203,924 § 9953 § (769,354)
Education 23,297,022 293,948 2,438,758 93 (20,564,223)
Human services 39,400,204 2,186,607 26,438,632 28,461 (10,746,504)
Criminal justice and corrections 5,178,908 272,613 157,720 615 (4,747,960)
Natural resources and environment 3,187,110 387,081 1,336,635 — (1,463,394)
Transportation 4,301,255 318,386 94,037 2,037,737 (1,851,095)
Judicial branch 694,616 93,555 1,791 — (599,270)
Indirect interest on long-term debt 66,581 — — — (66,581)
Total governmental activities 85,740,451 8,183,714 34,671,497 2,076,859 (40,808,381)
Business-type activities:
Transportation 842,859 1,189,112 — — 346,253
Lottery 5,653,279 7,570,838 — — 1,917,559
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund 1,556,717 1,631,661 — — 74,944
Prepaid College Program 898,935 764,072 — — (134,863)
Reemployment Assistance 9,191,215 526,593 6,846,162 — (1,818,460)
Nonmajor enterprise funds 388,942 459,066 646 14,170 84,940
Total business-type activities 18,531,947 12,141,342 6,846,808 14,170 470,373
Total primary government $ 104,272,398 $ 20,325,056 $ 41,518,305 $ 2,091,029 §  (40,338,008)
Component units
Florida Housing Finance Corporation $ 194,772 $ 259,819 $ — 3 — 3 65,047
University of Florida 6,464,824 4,225,924 1,073,015 60,688 (1,105,197)
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation 764,734 617,888 — — (146,846)
Nonmajor component units 13,796,903 3,535,802 4,263,283 572,683 (5,425,135)
Total component units $ 21,221,233 § 8,639,433 § 5,336,298 $ 633,371 $ (6,612,131)
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Net (expense) revenue $  (40,808,381) $ 470,373 $  (40,338,008) $ (6,612,131)
General revenues:
Taxes
Sales and use tax 26,936,491 — 26,936,491 —
Fuel taxes 3,048,047 — 3,048,047 —
Corporate income tax 2,509,887 — 2,509,887 —
Documentary stamp tax 2,829,050 — 2,829,050 —
Intangible personal property tax 488,765 — 488,765 —
Communications service tax 927,396 — 927,396 —
Beverage and tobacco taxes 1,398,145 — 1,398,145 —
Insurance premium tax 1,225,176 — 1,225,176 —
Gross receipts utilities tax 732,663 — 732,663 —
Property taxes — — — 498,201
Other taxes 904,529 — 904,529 —
Investment earning (loss) 886,544 11,173 897,717 1,245,236
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 5,111 (998) 4,113 (22,113)
Payments from the State of Florida — — — 4,764,824
Emergency assessments — — — —
Miscellaneous 1 3,174 3,175 1,039,852
Transfers 1,762,981 (1,762,981) — —
Contributions to permanent funds — — — 107,685
Total general revenues, transfers and contributions 43,654,786 (1,749,632) 41,905,154 7,633,685
Changes in net position 2,846,405 (1,279,259) 1,567,146 1,021,554
Net position - beginning, as restated (Note 1) 66,823,812 30,773,430 97,597,242 41,891,210
Net position - ending $ 69,670,217  $ 29,494,171  § 99,164,388  $ 42,912,764
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

GENERAL FUND
This fund is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for the financial resources and transactions not
accounted for in other funds.

NATURAL RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT, AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT
This fund accounts for operations of various programs, such as air pollution control, water quality assurance,
ecosystem management, and marine resources conservation.

PUBLIC EDUCATION
This fund includes internal reporting funds administered by the Department of Education to operate
education-related programs.

HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES
This fund includes internal reporting funds used to operate various health and family service-related
programs, such as health care, elder affairs, and public assistance.

TRANSPORTATION
This fund includes the internal reporting special revenue funds used to account for the administration of the
maintenance and development of the State highway system and other transportation-related projects.

Nonmajor Funds

Nonmajor governmental funds are presented, by fund type, beginning on page 204.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Pooled investments with State Treasury
Other investments
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Due from component units/primary
Inventories
Other
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Long-term investments
Advances to other funds
Advances to other entities
Other loans and notes receivable, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Grants paid in advance
Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to component units/primary
Compensated absences
Claims payable
Deposits
Obligations under security lending agreements
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Advances from other funds
Deposits
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

Natural
Resources,
Environment, and Health and

General Growth Public Family

Fund Management Education Services
$ 19,577  § 9,783 — 5,699
12,701,541 2,388,730 888,921 1,710,729
1,099,784 — — —
1,961,384 236,874 28,241 2,199,130
235,973 59,357 157,577 173,360
344 432 10,905 —
7,725 748 — 27,068
1,826 — — —
16,028,154 2,695,924 1,085,644 4,115,986
1,125 — — —
3,759 736 747,012 —
5,365 1,759,394 1,268 32,782
10,249 1,760,130 748,280 32,782
16,038,403 4,456,054 1,833,924 4,148,768
16,038,403 4,456,054 1,833,924 4,148,768
708,196 55,086 26,542 693,351
626,056 10,866 4,077 66,012
16,264 36,540 179 14,888
17,054 2,699 1 1,804
103,482 — — 610,442
6,897 22,484 9,077 729
1,257,407 79,584 45,540 3,734
2,735,356 207,259 85,416 1,390,960
— — 986,684 —
3,896,767 — — —
3,896,767 — 986,684 —
6,632,123 207,259 1,072,100 1,390,960
163,250 2,334 — 932,203
163,250 2,334 — 932,203
11,959 748 — 27,068
73,252 2,828,858 1,239,797 270,298
1,293,157 1,416,855 380,604 1,528,239
7,864,662 — (858,577) —
9,243,030 4,246,461 761,824 1,825,605
$ 16,038,403 $ 4,456,054 $ 1,833,924 § 4,148,768

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Governmental
Transportation Funds Totals 6/30/20
$ 784 $ 24,425 $ 60,268
2,243,914 2,024,988 21,958,823
— 206,039 1,305,823
339,826 655,970 5,421,425
253,708 157,424 1,037,399
— 1 11,682
7,777 2,432 45,750
8 460 2,294
2,846,017 3,071,739 29,843,464
— 37,926 37,926
116,795 — 117,920
40,710 — 792,217
493,032 782,288 3,074,129
650,537 820,214 4,022,192
3,496,554 3,891,953 33,865,656
3,496,554 3,891,953 33,865,656
692,338 347,313 2,522,826
34,453 197,540 939,004
— 2,209 70,080
384 1,205 23,147
— 4,447 718,371
609,142 151,732 800,061
108,711 70,387 1,565,363
1,445,028 774,833 6,638,852
— 737 987,421
— 11,368 3,908,135
— 12,105 4,895,556
1,445,028 786,938 11,534,408
353,160 301,079 1,752,026
353,160 301,079 1,752,026
7,785 6,912 54,472
50 1,502,513 5,914,768
1,690,531 1,294,511 7,603,897
— — 7,006,085
1,698,366 2,803,936 20,579,222

3,496,554 § 3,891,953 § 33,865,656

33



2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO

THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(in thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities reported in governmental funds
are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Land and other nondepreciable assets
Nondepreciable infrastructure

Buildings, equipment and other depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation

Construction work in progress

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Compensated absences

Installment purchases/capital leases/public-private partnership agreements
Claims payable

Bonds payable

Certificates of participation payable

Pension liability

Other postemployment benefits

Due to other governments

Other

Deferred amounts on refunding are reported in the Statement of Net Position
as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources (to be amortized as
interest expense) but are not reported in the funds.

Deferred amounts for pension-related items are reported in the Statement of
Net Position as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources (to be
amortized as pension expense) but are not reported in the funds.

Deferred amounts for other postemployment items are reported in the
Statement of Net Position as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of
resources (to be amortized as pension expense) but are not reported in the
funds.

Accrued interest payable on bonds that is not recognized on the fund
statements but is recognized on the Statement of Net Position.

Assets (receivables) not available to provide current resources are offset with
deferred inflows of resources in the fund statements. The reduction of the
deferred inflow and recognition of revenue increases net position in the
Statement of Net Position.

Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide goods and
services to other funds or agencies within the state. Therefore, the excess of
assets over liabilities of the internal service funds are included as
governmental activities on the Statement of Net Position.

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 20,579,222

20,447,216

52,713,027
7,091,920

(4,781,162)
4,686,302

80,157,303

(743,726)
(2,801,520)
(1,751,030)

(12,610,314)

(63,860)
(8,540,746)
(8,812,976)

(358,529)
(17,492)

(35,700,193)

(6,829)

2,601,913

(424,588)

(29,181)

1,752,026

740,544

$ 69,670,217
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

Natural
Resources,
Environment, Health and
General and Growth Public Family
Fund Management Education Services
REVENUES
Taxes $ 3591508 $ 290,135 § 1,062,063 $ 730,581
Licenses and permits 256,563 50,142 990 37,072
Fees and charges 1,417,351 151,024 61,415 1,427,941
Grants and donations 1,873,588 250,405 2,484,170 26,272,780
Investment earnings (losses) 787,493 93,965 77,035 10,067
Fines, forfeits, settlements and judgments 284,197 4,589 131,397 41,730
Other 65 17,181 17,548 595,660
Total revenues 40,534,343 857,441 3,834,618 29,115,831
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 5,353,432 21,015 — 183,391
Education 17,529,269 — 5,263,593 —
Human services 8,875,809 — — 30,044,276
Criminal justice and corrections 3,940,581 — — —
Natural resources and environment 599,169 1,215,455 — —
Transportation 80,199 — — —
Judicial branch 459,762 — — —
Capital outlay 112,036 105,894 15 18,815
Debt service:
Principal retirement 9,391 — — —
Interest and fiscal charges 4,159 — — —
Total expenditures 36,963,807 1,342,364 5,263,608 30,246,482
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 3,570,536 (484,923) (1,428,990) (1,130,651)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of bond issues 2,958 — 43,206 —
Proceeds of refunding bonds — — — —
Proceeds of financing agreements 23,562 — — —
Operating transfers in 856,514 1,109,710 2,402,509 1,639,982
Operating transfers out (4,032,832) (346,416) (1,179,269) (496,396)
Payments to refunded bond agent — — — —
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,149,798) 763,294 1,266,446 1,143,586
Net change in fund balances 420,738 278,371 (162,544) 12,935
Fund balances - beginning, as restated (Note 1) 8,822,292 3,968,090 924,368 1,812,670
Fund balances - ending $ 9,243,030 $ 4,246,461 $ 761,824 § 1,825,605

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor

Governmental Totals

Transportation Funds 6/30/20
$ 2,762,052 § 220,924  $ 40,980,841
14,327 1,682,343 2,041,437
391,066 707,050 4,155,847
2,107,979 3,971,797 36,960,719
94,607 95,132 1,158,299
2,748 474,333 938,994
21,832 75,184 727,470
5,394,611 7,226,763 86,963,607
193,229 3,844,191 9,595,258

— 210,188 23,003,050
— 429,953 39,350,038
— 592,236 4,532,817
— 1,239,805 3,054,429

4,071,849 128 4,152,176
— 89,089 548,851
2,741,942 149,653 3,128,355
410,800 1,087,084 1,507,275
60,830 559,069 624,058
7,478,650 8,201,396 89,496,307
(2,084,039) (974,633)  (2,532,700)
348,000 3,597 397,761
— 1,381,184 1,381,184
496,421 — 519,983
1,979,919 3,419,043 11,407,677
(784,515) (2,495,719)  (9,335,147)
— (1,381,184)  (1,381,184)
2,039,825 926,921 2,990,274
(44,214) (47,712) 457,574
1,742,580 2,851,648 20,121,648

$ 1,698,366 _$ 2,803,936 § 20,579,222
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of goods or
services to other funds and agencies within the state. Therefore, the net revenue
(expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated over the estimated useful
lives of the assets and reported as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlay expenditures exceeded depreciation in the
current period.

Capital outlay expenditures
Capital asset transfers, net
Depreciation expense

3,128,352
(302,371)
(285,170)

In the Statement of Activities, the gain or (loss) on the sale of assets is reported
whereas in the governmental funds only the proceeds from the sale increase financial
resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund balances
by the cost of the assets sold.

In the Statement of Activities, some revenues are recognized that do not provide
current financial resources and are not recognized as revenues in the governmental
funds until available, i.e., deferred inflows of resources, unavailable revenue.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Increase in compensated absences
Decrease in accrued interest

Decrease in claims payable

Increase in other postemployment benefits
Increase in net pension related items
Decrease in due to other governments
Increase in other liabilities

(23,892)
7,043
181,675
(350,448)
(1,008,912)
19,720
(4,440)

The incurrence of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayments of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of premiums, discounts, deferred amounts on refundings when debt is issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Bond proceeds

Refunding bond proceeds

Financing agreement proceeds

Repayment of bonds

Repayment of capital leases/installment purchase contracts
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Amortization of bond premium

Amortization of amount deferred on refunding of debt
Accrued interest payable at refunding

(397,761)
(1,381,184)
(519,983)
1,083,737
423,537
1,381,184
195,718
(7,921)
(18,411)

Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 457,574

190,695

2,540,811

50,915

26,748

(1,179,254)

758,916

$ 2,846,405
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

TRANSPORTATION
This fund primarily accounts for operations of the Florida Turnpike Enterprise which includes the Florida
Turnpike System.

LOTTERY
This fund accounts for state lottery operations, which include sale of lottery tickets, payment of lottery prizes,
and transfers to the Education Enhancement Trust Fund.

FLORIDA HURRICANE CATASTROPHE FUND
This fund, administered by the State Board of Administration, is used to help cover insurers’ losses in the
event of a hurricane disaster.

PREPAID COLLEGE PROGRAM

This fund, administered by the State Board of Administration, is used to account for payments from
purchasers of the Florida Prepaid College Program, a blended component unit. This program was created to
provide a medium through which the cost of state post-secondary education may be paid in advance of
enrollment at a rate lower than the projected corresponding costs at the time of enrollment.
REEMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE

This fund accounts for the receipt of monies for and payment of unemployment compensation benefits.

Nonmajor Funds

Nonmajor enterprise funds are presented on page 245.

Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are presented on page 251.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(in thousands)

Hurricane Catastrophe Prepaid College Reemployment
Transportation Lottery Fund Program Assistance
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,585 § 255§ — 8 10,486 $ 404
Pooled investments with State Treasury 907,575 377,480 — — 2,366,240
Other investments 85,627 — 5,338,170 3,152,596 —
Receivables, net 13,127 76,776 804,058 361,615 679,960
Due from other funds 144,183 — — 384 210
Due from component units/primary — — — — 346
Inventories 8,944 2,848 — — —
Other — 2,382 — — —
Total current assets 1,161,041 459,741 6,142,228 3,525,081 3,047,160
Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 156 — — — —
Restricted pooled investments with State Treasury 180,651 24,239 — — —
Restricted investments 247,837 323,996 — — —
Long-term investments — — 9,219,007 12,979,108 —
Other loans and notes receivable, net 74,061 — — 1,836,467 —
Capital assets
Land and other non-depreciable assets 1,234,550 4,249 — — —
Non-depreciable infrastructure 11,122,875 — — — —
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 1,567,634 13,005 116 129 —
Accumulated depreciation (547,496) (9,981) (59) (74) —
Construction work in progress 1,591,334 — — — —
Other — 34,181 — — —
Total noncurrent assets 15,471,602 389,689 9,219,064 14,815,630 —
Total assets 16,632,643 849,430 15,361,292 18,340,711 3,047,160
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amount deferred on refunding of debt 25,304 — — — —
Pension-related items — 9,619 712 1,323 —
Other postemployment benefits — 5,722 123 132 —
Total deferred outflows of resources 25,304 15,341 835 1,455 —
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 93,367 13,468 673,928 556,565 717,010
Accrued prize liability — 307,053 — — —
Due to other governments — — — — 11,552
Due to other funds 118,928 127,439 251 29,286 547
Due to component units/primary — — — — —
Compensated absences — 751 90 100 —
Installment purchases/capital leases 1,974 — — — —
Bonds payable — — 1,000,000 — —
Bonds payable from restricted assets 148,335 — — — —
Deposits 102,753 — — — —
Claims payable — — 2,683,491 — —
Obligations under security lending agreements 59,691 22,230 — 2,429,016 —
Certificates of participation payable — — — — —
Tuition and housing benefits payable — — — 509,224 —
Pension liability — 117 7 11 —
Other postemployment benefits — 460 7 8 —
Total current liabilities 525,048 471,518 4,357,774 3,524,210 729,109
Noncurrent liabilities
Advances from other funds 116,683 — — — —
Accrued prize liability — 232,696 — — —
Bonds payable 2,722,174 — 650,000 — —
Certificates of participation payable — — — — —
Installment purchases/capital leases 211,634 — — — —
Deposits 252 — — — —
Compensated absences — 2,739 219 373 —
Tuition and housing benefits payable — — — 11,247,787 —
Pension liability — 24,592 1,628 2,508 —
Other postemployment benefits liability — 35,100 500 577 —
Other — — — — —
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,050,743 295,127 652,347 11,251,245 —
Total liabilities 3,575,791 766,645 5,010,121 14,775,455 729,109
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts 134,632 — — — —
Amount deferred on refunding of debt 16,625 — — — —
Pension-related items — 2,564 109 156 —
Other postemployment benefits — 6,919 85 119 —
Total deferred inflows of resources 151,257 9,483 194 275 —
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 11,889,482 7,273 57 56 —
Restricted for Reemployment Assistance — — — — 2,318,051
Restricted for Lottery — 139,270 — — —
Restricted for Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — — 10,351,755 — —
Restricted for Prepaid College Program — — — 3,566,380 —
Restricted for Transportation 249,847 — — — —
Restricted - other — — — — —
Unrestricted 791,570 (57,900) — — —
Total net position 12.930.899 88,643 10351.812 3.566.436 2318051

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Totals 6/30/20 Funds

$ 33426 $ 46,156  $ 11,901
397,272 4,048,567 819,477
14,318 8,590,711 44,295
31,966 1,967,502 77,185
11,336 156,113 26,580
154 500 1,368

1 11,793 —

1,353 3,735 —
489,826 14,825,077 980,806
— 156 —

— 204,890 —

— 571,833 —
60,022 22,258,137 —
3,149 1,913,677 —
— 1,238,799 314

— 11,122,875 —
326,323 1,907,207 1,582,728
(81,412) (639,022) (656,383)
14,876 1,606,210 26,437
4,497 38,678 —
327,455 40,223,440 953,096
817,281 55,048,517 1,933,902
— 25,304 3,414
45,625 57,279 38,094
33,783 39,760 17,646
79,408 122,343 59,154
41,028 2,095,366 223,194
— 307,053 —

— 11,552 —
9,186 285,637 14,311
431 431 —
6,040 6,981 2,248
773 2,747 2,344

— 1,000,000 15,710

— 148,335 —
19,300 122,053 220,036
— 2,683,491 —
18,598 2,529,535 37,137
— — 27,150

— 509,224 —

711 846 365
2,512 2,987 1,327
98,579 9,706,238 543,822
— 116,683 500

— 232,696 —

— 3,372,174 158,838

— — 292,852
7,444 219,078 3,248
166,519 166,771 —
15,956 19,287 9,749
— 11,247,787 —
122,584 151,312 96,713
191,748 227,925 101,278
1,449 1,449 —
505,700 15,755,162 663,178
604,279 25,461,400 1,207,000
— 134,632 —

— 16,625 7,253
13,174 16,003 11,616
40,906 48,029 26,643
54,080 215,289 45,512
125,171 12,022,039 454,707
— 2,318,051 —

— 139,270 —

— 10,351,755 —

— 3,566,380 —

— 249,847 —
2,132 2,132 53,538
111,027 844,697 232,299

S 238330 S 290494171 8 740,544
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales - nonstate

Change in actuarial value
of contract premiums

Fees

Sales - state

Rents and royalties - nonstate

Rents - state

Fines, forfeits, settlements and judgments
Other

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Benefit payments

Payment of lottery winnings

Commissions on lottery sales
Contractual services

Change in actuarial value
of contract benefit payments

Insurance claims expense
Personal services
Depreciation

Materials and supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Basic services

Interest and fiscal charges

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grants and donations

Investment earnings (losses)

Interest and fiscal charges

Fines, forfeits, judgments and settlements
Property disposition gain (loss)

Grant expense and client benefits

Other

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Capital contributions

Change in net position
Total net position - beginning, as restated (Note 1)

Total net position - ending

Hurricane
Catastrophe Prepaid College
Transportation Lottery Fund Program

$ 15239 §$ 7,510,911 § 1,130,110 § (265,597)
— — — (305,864)

1,096,977 — — 1,481

— — 43 225

8,773 560 — —

433 156 — —
1,121,422 7,511,627 1,130,153 (569,755)

— 5,030,240 — _

— 420,843 — —

592,156 150,843 3,940 394,899

— — 1,499,999 464,118

19,341 33,047 2,046 2,823

100,334 857 13 24

20,774 571 20 71

— 679 — —

— 4,616 163 185

— — — 51

732,605 5,641,696 1,506,181 862,171
388,817 1,869,931 (376,028) (1,431,926)

68,227 59,700 501,508 1,333,827
(113,607) (11,584) (50,536) (33,119)

563 — 2,130 479

1,034 (16) — —

(43,783) 48,100 453,102 1,301,187
345,034 1,918,031 77,074 (130,739)

84,704 — — —
(101,008) (1,913,951) (13,500) (3,644)

302,342 — — —
631,072 4,080 63,574 (134,383)

12,299,827 84,563 10,288,238 3,700,819

$ 12,930,899 $ 88,043 § 10,351,812 $ 3,566,436

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Internal
Reemployment Enterprise Service
Assistance Funds Totals 6/30/20 Funds

$ — 8 82,161 § 8,472,824 $ 41,837
— — (305,864) —

422,082 260,873 1,781,413 1
— 42,276 42,544 2,712,510

— 2 9,335 —

_ 49 49 141,003

— 8,047 8,636 36

— 39,941 39,941 15,039
422,082 433,349 10,048,878 2,910,426
9,154,376 — 9,154,376 —
— — 5,030,240 —

— — 420,843 —

— 113,045 1,254,883 555,724

— — 1,964,117 —

— — — 2,031,502

— 224,742 281,999 105,603

— 12,021 113,249 36,159

— 5,146 26,582 5,239

— 1,694 2,373 1,745

— 27,561 32,525 8,686

— 2,307 2,358 11
9,154,376 386,516 18,283,545 2,744,669
(8,732,294) 46,833 (8,234,667) 165,757
6,846,162 15,197 6,861,359 815
101,989 17,160 2,082,411 30,304
— (1,003) (209,849) (11,802)

— 2 3,174 —
— (20) 998 (791)

— (1,087) (1,087) —
(34,298) (161) (34,459) —
6,913,853 30,088 8,702,547 18,526
(1,818,441) 76,921 467,880 184,283
1,894 26,719 113,317 24,482
(9,522) (121,202) (2,162,827) (18,196)

— 29 302,371 126
(1,826,069) (17,533) (1,279,259) 190,695
4,144,120 255,863 30,773,430 549,849
$ 2,318,051 3 238,330 $ 29,494,171 $ 740,544
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(in thousands)

Hurricane
Catastrophe
Transportation Lottery Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1,165,148 $ 7,490,092 $ 1,122,282
Cash paid to vendors (579,483) (575,701) (4,206)
Cash paid to employees (20,162) (28,313) (1,730)
Cash received/(paid) for grants — — —
Lottery prizes — (4,914,226) —
Cash paid for insurance claims — — (2,266,595)
Reemployment assistance — — —
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 565,503 1,971,852 (1,150,249)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfers in (out) (14,989) (1,862,023) (13,500)
Advances from or repayment from other funds 16,823 — —
Advances, grants or loans (to) from or repayment from others (69,073) — (24)
Payment of bonds or loans (principal and interest) — — (603,045)
Cash received from noncapital grants or donations — — —
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities (67,239) (1,862,023) (616,569)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from sale or lease of capital assets — — —
Cash received from the issuance of debt 190,386 — —
Cash received from capital grants and donations — — —
Payment of bond principal (140,245) — —
Payment of interest on bonds/installment purchase/capital lease (132,260) — —
Purchase or construction of capital assets (701,157) (739) (12)
Line of credit draws/(payments) — — —
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities (783,276) (739) (12)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Security lending 1,360 22,230 —
Proceeds from the sale or maturity of investments 3,376,327 22,297 44,190,659
Cash paid to grand prize winners upon maturity of
grand prize investments — (22,297) —
Investment earnings 69,711 20,767 267,893
Purchase of investments (3,404,587) (11,770) (42,691,722)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 42,811 31,227 1,766,830
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (242,201) 140,317 —
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 1,332,168 261,657 —
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ 1,089,967 $ 401,974 $ —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Internal
Prepaid College Reemployment Enterprise Service
Program Assistance Funds Totals 6/30/20 Funds

$ 462,708 $ 400,195 $ 392,572 $ 11,032,997 § 2,927,565
(807,723) — (156,148) (2,123,261) (576,493)
(2,339) — (195,834) (248,378) (91,159)

— — 31,074 31,074 —

— — — (4,914,226) —
— — — (2,266,595) (2,032,153)

— (9,051,763) — (9,051,763) —
(347,354) (8,651,568) 71,664 (7,540,152) 227,760
(3,644) (7,609) (95,671) (1,997,436) 5,664
— — (1,111 15,712 (25,315)

— — — (69,097) —

— — — (603,045) —

— 6,846,162 646 6,846,808 —
(3,644) 6,838,553 (96,136) 4,192,942 (19,651)

— — — — 434

— — — 190,386 —

— — 6,725 6,725 —
— — (7,113) (147,358) (51,965)
— — — (132,260) (10,857)
(8) — 9,128) (711,044) (23,421)

— — (1,574) (1,574) —
(8) — (11,090) (795,125) (85,809)

6,019 — 3,570 33,179 13,605
20,391,954 — 128,479 68,109,716 —
— — — (22,297) —

175,202 101,989 16,904 652,466 29,725
(20,219,851) — (126,834) (66,454,764) —
353,324 101,989 22,119 2,318,300 43,330
2,318 (1,711,026) (13,443) (1,824,035) 165,630

8,168 4,077,670 444,141 6,123,804 665,748

$ 10,486 $ 2,366,644 $ 430,698 $ 4,299,769 $ 831,378
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities

Hurricane
Catastrophe
Transportation Lottery Fund
Operating income (loss) $ 388,817 $ 1,869,931 $ (376,028)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 100,334 857 13
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 29,738 (22,831) (2,003)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (3,145) — —
Increase (decrease) in allowance for uncollectibles — 1,296 (562)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (2,643) (1,639) —
(Increase) decrease in future contract premiums and other receivables — — —
(Increase) decrease in other noncurrent assets — (435) —
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 19,657 3,490 (5,348)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences — (124) 51
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 31,664 — —
Increase (decrease) in tuition and housing benefits payable — — —
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liability — — —
(Increase) decrease in deposits and prepaid items — — 6
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 1,081 — —
Increase (decrease) in prize liability — 116,449 —
Increase (decrease) in pension liability and deferrals — — 237
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability and deferrals — 1,511 27
Increase (decrease) in claims payable — 3,347 (766,642)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 565,503 $ 1,971,852 $  (1,150,249)
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
Borrowing under capital lease or installment purchase $ 36,058 S — 3 —
Change in fair value of investments 14,620 39,324 79,835
Contribution of capital assets 6,062 — —
Other noncash items 71,174 _ _

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Internal
Prepaid College = Reemployment Enterprise Totals Service
Program Assistance Funds 6/30/20 Funds
§  (1,431,926) $  (8,732,294) § 46,833  § (8,234,667) 165,757
24 — 12,021 113,249 36,159
17,531 (626,320) 23,103 (580,782) (26,129)
2,772 — (8,642) (9,015) (569)
— 5,142 (22,938) (17,062) 338
— — 1 (4,281) —
305,864 — 22 305,886 —
— — 527 92 —
268,418 701,824 (1,831) 986,210 (8,343)
72 — 2,101 2,100 (299)
25,312 80 (217) 56,839 601
464,118 — — 464,118 —
— — 276 276 —
— — (113) (107) —
— — (3,283) (2,202) 42,691
— — — 116,449 —
435 — 15,840 16,512 14,113
26 — 7,964 9,528 3,441
— — — (763,295) —
$ (347,354) $§  (8,651,568) $ 71,664 $ (7,540,152) 227,760
$ — 3 — — 3 36,058 —
490,259 — (128) 623,910 11,912
— — 135,927 141,989 —
— — — 71,174 —
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 259.

PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 265.

INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 271.

AGENCY FUNDS
Individual fund descriptions and financial statements begin on page 275.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Pooled investments with State Treasury
Total cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Certificates of deposit

U.S. government & federally guaranteed obligations

Federal agencies
Commercial paper
Repurchase agreements
Bonds and notes
International bonds and notes
Real estate contracts
Mutual fund investments
Money market and short-term investments
Domestic equity
Alternative investments
International equity
International equity commingled
Deferred compensation annuities
Self-directed brokerage investments
Other investments
Total investments
Receivables
Accounts receivable
State contributions receivable
Nonstate contributions receivable
Interest receivable
Dividends receivable
Pending investment sales
Foreign currency contracts receivable
Due from state funds
Due from other governments
Total receivables
Security lending collateral
Advances to other funds
Advances to other entities
Capital assets
Accumulated depreciation
Other assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related items
Other postemployment benefits
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
DROP
Pending investment purchases
Short sell obligations
Foreign currency contracts payable
Broker rebate fees
Due to other governments
Obligations under security lending agreements
Claims payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences
Other liabilities
Pension liability
Other postemployment benefits liability
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related items
Other postemployment benefits
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION

Restricted for pension benefits and other purposes

Pension and

Private- Other Employee
Purpose Benefits Investment Agency Totals
Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds Funds 6/30/20
$ 5955 § 93,021 § 1,776,700 66,388 § 1,942,064
689,305 184,902 827,544 945,719 2,647,470
695,260 277,923 2,604,244 1,012,107 4,589,534
— — 2,671,483 — 2,671,483
35,465 14,927,086 1,250,934 37,414 16,250,899
62,477 8,293,660 — — 8,356,137
— 1,127,836 5,580,276 — 6,708,112
— 800,000 1,447,681 — 2,247,681
119,630 11,169,224 31,257 — 11,320,111
13,185 2,474,291 — — 2,487,476
— 11,996,483 — — 11,996,483
403,311 11,387,389 — — 11,790,700
122,568 1,680,114 715,976 — 2,518,658
100,861 48,832,803 — — 48,933,664
— 28,780,594 — — 28,780,594
8,977 31,158,211 — — 31,167,188
— 7,089,845 — — 7,089,845
— 14,270 — — 14,270
— 817,186 — — 817,186
— 15,838 — 200 16,038
866,474 180,564,830 11,697,607 37,614 193,166,525
11,533 22,075 — 713,204 746,812
— 666 — — 666
— 337,082 — — 337,082
4,989 138,402 4,354 955 148,700
363 209,099 — — 209,462
8,954 1,127,239 — — 1,136,193
— 97,986 — — 97,986
29,496 68,263 — 254,481 352,240
4,970 — — — 4,970
60,305 2,000,812 4,354 968,640 3,034,111
— 1,830,474 — — 1,830,474
986,684 — — — 986,684
41,296 — — — 41,296
12,450 1,337 — — 13,787
(256) (711) — — (967)
2,080 5,346 21 — 7,447
2,664,293 184,680,011 14,306,226 2,018,361 203,668,891
2,058 134 — — 2,192
980 2,664 — — 3,644
3,038 2,798 — — 5,836
42,572 183,781 745 757,086 984,184
1,238 77,231 110 254,801 333,380
— 298,096 — — 298,096
38,962 3,756,587 176,328 — 3,971,877
— 64,604 — — 64,604
— 98,021 — — 98,021
— 58 — — 58
1,447 — — 714,629 716,076
35,799 1,848,298 46,272 15,979 1,946,348
— — — 17,212 17,212
35,202 42,177 — 258,494 335,873
673 1,137 — — 1,810
— — — 160 160
2,848 364 — — 3,212
5,580 15,123 — — 20,703
164,321 6,385,477 223,455 2,018,361 8,791,614
238 211 — — 449
1,111 3,659 — — 4,770
1,349 3,870 — — 5,219
S 2,501,661 $ 178,293,462 $ 14,082,771 —  $194,877,894

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(in thousands)

Pension and

Private- Other Employee
Purpose Benefits Investments Totals
Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds 6/30/20
ADDITIONS
Contributions and other deposits
Pension fund employer contributions - state $ — 3 735,927 $ — $ 735927
Pension fund employer contributions - nonstate — 3,664,610 — 3,664,610
Pension fund employee contributions — 1,082,588 — 1,082,588
Other contributions — 185,725 — 185,725
Purchase of time by employees — 4,341 — 4,341
Fees 1,400 1,874 — 3,274
Grants and contributions 151,866 — — 151,866
Flexible benefits contributions — 264,973 — 264,973
Fines, forfeits, settlements and judgments 264 6 291 561
Unclaimed property remittances 503,173 — — 503,173
Receivership assets acquired 110,150 — — 110,150
Transfers in from state funds 5,038 665,247 — 670,285
Total contributions and other deposits 771,891 6,605,291 291 7,377,473
Investment income
Interest income 37,888 1,449,426 248,905 1,736,219
Dividends 8,053 1,767,095 — 1,775,148
Other investment income (loss) — 2,292,632 — 2,292,632
Net increase (decrease) in fair market value 9,294 950,823 362 960,479
Total investment income (loss) 55,235 6,459,976 249,267 6,764,478
Investment activity expense (3,126) (619,673) 4,774) (627,573)
Net income (loss) from investing activity 52,109 5,840,303 244,493 6,136,905
Security lending activity
Security lending income — 38,259 — 38,259
Security lending expense — (10,684) — (10,684)
Net income from security lending — 27,575 — 27,575
Total net investment income (loss) 52,109 5,867,878 244,493 6,164,480
Other additions 3,018 20,721 — 23,739
Total additions 827,018 12,493,890 244,784 13,565,692
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments — 12,900,838 — 12,900,838
Insurance claims expense 6,368 7,436 — 13,804
Supplemental insurance payments — 92,997 — 92,997
Flexible reimbursement payments — 26,395 — 26,395
Life insurance premium payments — 33,902 — 33,902
Remittances to annuity companies — 212,447 — 212,447
Program contribution refunds — 18,888 — 18,888
Interest expense 703 2 — 705
Student loan default payments 53,464 — — 53,464
Payments to unclaimed property claimants 321,914 — — 321,914
Distribution to State School Fund 130,289 — — 130,289
Administrative expense 23,930 27,138 51 51,119
Transfers out to state funds 2,814 696,777 — 699,591
Other deductions 55,369 13 — 55,382
Total deductions 594,851 14,016,333 51 14,611,735
Depositor activity
Deposits 196,845 — 26,864,146 27,060,991
Withdrawals (46,706) — (24,925,127)  (24,971,833)
Excess (deficiency) of deposits over withdrawals 150,139 — 1,939,019 2,089,158
Change in net position 382,306 (1,522,943) 2,183,752 1,043,115
Net position - beginning 2,119,355 179,816,405 11,899,019 193,834,779
Net position - ending $ 2,501,661 $ 178,293,462 $ 14,082,771 $194,877,894

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Component Units

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

Pursuant to Section 420.504, Florida Statutes, this corporation was created as an entrepreneurial public corporation organized to
provide and promote public welfare by administering the governmental function of financing or refinancing housing and related
facilities in Florida.

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA
University of Florida is a major, public, comprehensive, land-grant, research university with a main campus location in
Gainesville, Florida.

CITIZENS PROPERTY INSURANCE CORPORATION

Pursuant to Section 627.351(6), Florida Statutes, this corporation was created to provide certain residential property,
non-residential property, and casualty insurance coverage to qualified risks in the State of Florida under specified
circumstances.

Nonmajor Component Units

Nonmajor component units are presented beginning on page 281.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(in thousands)

Florida Citizens
Housing University Property Nonmajor
Finance of Insurance Component
Corporation Florida Corporation Units Totals 6/30/20
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 201,360 $ 537,318 $ 503,327 $ 1,073,234  $ 2,315,239
Pooled investments with State Treasury 983,742 888,897 — 1,775,932 3,648,571
Other investments 1,795,800 1,637,415 8,538,881 5,386,101 17,358,197
Receivables, net 188,552 715,354 230,628 959,589 2,094,123
Due from component units/primary — 106,881 — 451,818 558,699
Inventories — 80,178 — 37,259 117,437
Restricted cash and cash equivalents — 54,131 8,534 495,384 558,049
Restricted pooled investments with State Treasury — 211,567 — 667,469 879,036
Restricted investments — 2,833,104 — 4,188,043 7,021,147
Other loans and notes receivable, net 2,202,197 23,486 — 98,218 2,323,901
Other assets 1,878 295,796 31,241 390,601 719,516
Capital assets, net — 4,147,670 3,854 22,494,428 26,645,952
Total assets 5,373,529 11,531,797 9,316,465 38,018,076 64,239,867
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accum. decrease in fair value-hedging derivatives — 52,395 — 21,176 73,571
Grants paid in advance — — — 15 15
Amount deferred on refunding of debt — 27,175 — 28,857 56,032
Pension-related items — 323,933 — 1,262,733 1,586,666
Other postemployment benefits — 172,648 — 485,641 658,289
Asset retirement obligations — 8,883 — — 8,883
Total deferred outflows of resources — 585,034 — 1,798,422 2,383,456
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 32,024 901,390 772,279 957,643 2,663,336
Due to component units/primary — 33,546 — 42,840 76,386
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 325,129 231,831 1,014,502 685,530 2,256,992
Due in more than one year 2,168,367 3,993,584 1,005,809 10,371,441 17,539,201
Total liabilities 2,525,520 5,160,351 2,792,590 12,057,454 22,535,915
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred service concession arrangement receipts — — — 114,186 114,186
Grants received in advance — — — 1,535 1,535
Amount deferred on refunding of debt — 2,121 — 240 2,361
Pension-related items — 125,490 — 277,553 403,043
Other postemployment benefits — 226,520 — 369,184 595,704
Trrevocable split-interest agreements — 17,077 — 40,738 57,815
Total deferred inflows of resources — 371,208 — 803,436 1,174,644
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets — 2,450,640 3,854 19,861,683 22,316,177
Restricted for
Debt service — 4,536 — 38,338 42,874
Other 2,674,469 577,810 8,534 4,813,029 8,073,842
Funds held for permanent endowment
Expendable — 542,562 — 488,104 1,030,666
Nonexpendable — 1,425,766 — 2,261,484 3,687,250
Unrestricted 173,540 1,583,958 6,511,487 (507,030) 7,761,955
Total net position M 2,848,009 $ 6,585,272 § 6,523,875 $ 26,955,608 $ 42,912,764

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(in thousands)

Program Revenues

Florida
Operating Capital Housing
Charges for Grants and Grants and Finance
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Corporation
Florida Housing Finance $ 194,772 $ 259,819 $ — 3 — 3 65,047
Corporation
University of Florida 6,464,824 4,225,924 1,073,015 60,688 —
Citizens Property Insurance
Corporation 764,734 617,888 — — —
Nonmajor component units 13,796,903 3,535,802 4,263,283 572,683 —
Total component units $ 21,221,233 § 8,639,433 § 5,336,298 $ 633,371 65,047
General revenues
Property taxes —
Investment earnings (losses) —
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets —
Payments from the State of Florida —
Miscellaneous 159,900
Contributions to permanent funds —
Total general revenues and contributions 159,900
Change in net position 224,947
Net position - beginning, as restated (Note 1) 2,623,062
Net position - ending $ 2,848,009

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Citizens
University Property Nonmajor
of Insurance Component Totals
Florida Corporation Units 6/30/20
$ — 3 — 3 — 3 65,047
(1,105,197) — — (1,105,197)
— (146,846) — (146,846)
— — (5,425,135) (5,425,135)
(1,105,197) (146,846) (5,425,135) (6,612,131)
— — 498,201 498,201
179,817 608,488 456,931 1,245,236
(3,099) — (19,014) (22,113)
803,311 — 3,961,513 4,764,824
226,362 — 653,590 1,039,852
61,457 — 46,228 107,685
1,267,848 608,488 5,597,449 7,633,685
162,651 461,642 172,314 1,021,554
6,422,621 6,062,233 26,783,294 41,891,210
$ 6,585,272 $ 6,523,875 $§ 26,955,608 $ 42,912,764
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The State of Florida’s (the state’s) financial reporting entity includes the primary government (i.e., legislative agencies, the
Governor and Cabinet, departments and agencies, commissions and boards of the Executive Branch, and various offices
relating to the Judicial Branch) and its component units.

Component units, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section 2100, Defining the
Financial Reporting Entity, and Section 2600, Reporting Entity and Component Unit Presentation and Disclosure, are legally
separate organizations for which the elected officials of the state are financially accountable. Financial accountability is the
ability of the state to appoint a voting majority of an organization’s governing board and to impose its will upon the
organization. When the state does not appoint a voting majority of an organization’s governing body, GASB standards require
inclusion in the financial reporting entity if: (1) an organization is fiscally dependent upon the state because its resources are
held for the direct benefit of the state or can be accessed by the state and (2) the potential exists for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the state. In addition, component units can be other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the state are such that exclusion would cause the
state’s financial statements to be misleading.

Blended Component Units

A component unit is reported as blended when either (1) the component unit’s governing body is substantively the same as the
governing body of the state, and (a) there is a financial benefit or burden relationship between the governing body of the state
and the component unit, or (b) management of the governing body of the state has operational responsibility for the component
unit, or (2) the component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the state or otherwise exclusively, or almost
exclusively, benefits the state, or (3) the component unit’s outstanding debt is expected to be repaid entirely or almost entirely
with resources of the state.

The following component units provide services entirely or almost entirely to the primary government, or have outstanding debt
that is expected to be paid entirely or almost entirely with state resources:

*  Career Source Florida, Inc.

*  Corrections Foundation, Inc.

*  Florida Board of Governors

*  Florida Citrus Commission (Department of Citrus)

*  Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation

*  Florida Commission on Community Service (Volunteer Florida)
*  Florida Department of Transportation Financing Corporation
* Florida Engineers Management Corporation

*  Florida Intergovernmental Relations Foundation*

»  Florida Prepaid College Board

»  Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind

»  Florida Surplus Lines Service Office

»  Florida Water Pollution Control Financing Corporation

» Inland Protection Financing Corporation

»  Prescription Drug Monitoring Program Foundation*

»  Scripps Florida Funding Corporation

*  Space Florida

»  State Board of Administration (SBA)

»  State Board of Education (SBE)

*  Wireless Emergency Telephone System

Blended component units that are considered major funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements.
Other blended component units that are considered non-major funds are reported with other funds in the appropriate columns in
the fund financial statements. In addition, the financial data for some blended component units are reported in more than one
fund type, some of which are considered major and others that are considered non-major. Refer to Section D of this note for
more information on the determination criteria for major funds and a list of major funds and fund types.

* The state’s financial statements do not include amounts relating to these component units. The assets of these component
units at June 30, 2020, are approximately $1,481,355.

61



2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

Discretely Presented Component Units

Component units that are not blended are discretely presented. In the government-wide financial statements, discrete
presentation entails reporting component unit financial data in a column separate from the financial data of the state.

In addition, financial data for discretely presented component units that are considered major are reported in separate columns
in the basic financial statements for component units. Discretely presented component units that are considered non-major are
combined and reported in one column in the component unit financial statements and are aggregated by type in the combining
statements. The state’s financial statements are reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The state’s component units’
financial statements are reported for the most recent fiscal year for which an audit report is available. Some component units
have a fiscal year other than June 30. Accordingly, amounts reported by the state as due from and to component units on the
statement of net position may not agree with amounts reported by the component units as due from and to the state. Refer to
Section D of this note for more information on major fund determination and presentation. The state’s discretely presented
component units are grouped into the following categories:

State Universities and Colleges. State universities and colleges receive funding from the state. The State University System is
governed by the Florida Board of Governors. The Florida College System is governed by the State Board of Education. Each
university and college is administered by a local board of trustees. All state universities and colleges have a June 30 year-end.
Component units included in this category are:

State Universities
Major:
«  University of Florida'
Non-major:
» Florida Agricultural and Mechanical University
* Florida Atlantic University
»  Florida Gulf Coast University
*  Florida International University
»  Florida Polytechnic University
»  Florida State University
*  New College of Florida
*  University of Central Florida
*  University of North Florida
*  University of South Florida
*  University of West Florida

Florida College System Institutions
Non-major:

*  Broward College

*  Chipola College

*  College of Central Florida

»  Daytona State College

*  Eastern Florida State College

*  Florida Gateway College

»  The College of the Florida Keys

» Florida State College at Jacksonville

*  Florida SouthWestern State College

*  Gulf Coast State College

*  Hillsborough Community College

* Indian River State College

»  Lake-Sumter State College

*  Miami Dade College

*  North Florida College

*  Northwest Florida State College

*  Palm Beach State College

*  Pasco-Hernando State College

*  Pensacola State College

*  Polk State College
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» Santa Fe College

*  Seminole State College of Florida

*  South Florida State College

»  St. Johns River State College

*  St. Petersburg College

»  State College of Florida, Manatee-Sarasota
* Tallahassee Community College

«  Valencia College

! Significant transactions occurring during the 2019-20 fiscal year between the University of Florida and the state totaled
$849 million. These funds represent state appropriated funds to the University of Florida.

Florida Housing Finance Corporation (Major). Pursuant to Section 420.504, Florida Statutes (F.S.), this corporation was
created as an entrepreneurial public corporation organized to provide and promote public welfare by administering the
governmental function of financing or refinancing housing and related facilities in Florida. This entity has a December 31
year-end. Significant transactions occurring during the 2019-20 fiscal year between the Florida Housing Finance Corporation
and the state included revenues of state documentary stamp taxes totaling $340.2 million and transfers to state agencies of

$182 million.

Citizens Property Insurance Corporation (Major). Pursuant to Section 627.351(6), F.S., this corporation was created to
provide certain residential property and casualty insurance coverage to qualified risks in the state under specified circumstances.
This entity has a December 31 year-end. For additional information, refer to Note 14B.

Water Management Districts. Pursuant to Section 373.069, F.S., these districts were created to provide for the management
and conservation of water and related land resources. In addition, the general regulatory and administrative functions of these
districts are either fully or in part financed by general appropriations. Water management districts have a September 30
year-end. Component units included in this category are:

Non-major:
*  Northwest Florida Water Management District
»  St. Johns River Water Management District
*  South Florida Water Management District
*  Southwest Florida Water Management District
*  Suwannee River Water Management District

Other. Additional discretely presented component units of the state include various foundations and not-for-profit
organizations. The fiscal year-ends of these component units may vary. Component units included in this category are:

Non-major:
*  Commission for Florida Law Enforcement Accreditation, Inc.*
»  Enterprise Florida, Inc.
»  Florida Agricultural Museum*
»  Florida Agriculture Center and Horse Park Authority*
* Florida Agriculture in the Classroom, Inc.*
» Florida Alliance to End Human Trafficking*
*  Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Plan
*  Florida Board of Governors Foundation, Inc.*
»  Florida Concrete Masonry Education Council*
»  Florida Corrections Accreditation Commission, Inc.*
*  Florida Education Foundation, Inc.*
*  Florida Education Fund, Inc.
»  Florida Fund for Minority Teachers, Inc.*
*  Florida Healthy Kids Corporation
* Florida Is For Veterans, Inc.*
»  Florida Mobile Home Relocation Corporation*®
* Florida Patient’s Compensation Fund
»  Florida State Fair Authority
*  Florida Telecommunications Relay, Inc.*
*  Florida Tourism Industry Marketing Corporation, Inc.
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»  Florida Veterans Foundation, Inc.*

* Florida Virtual School

*  Forestry Arson Alert Association, Inc.*

»  Friends of Florida State Forests, Inc.*

*  Higher Educational Facilities Financing Authority

»  Prison Rehabilitative Industries and Diversified Enterprises, Inc. (PRIDE)
*  South Florida Regional Transportation Authority

»  The Florida College System Foundation, Inc.*

*  The Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation, Inc.
*  Triumph Gulf Coast, Inc.

+  Wildlife Alert Reward Association*

»  Wildlife Foundation of Florida, Inc.*

* The state’s financial statements do not include amounts relating to several component units. The assets and revenues relating
to these component units totaled $112 million and $31 million, respectively. These amounts represent less than one percent of
total aggregate component unit assets and revenues.

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an organization that results from a contractual arrangement and that is owned, operated, or governed by two
or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control, in which the participants retain (1) an ongoing
financial interest or (2) an ongoing financial responsibility. Financial data for the state’s joint ventures are not included in its
statements. The state’s joint ventures include the following:

Apalachicola-Chattahoochee-Flint River Basin (ACFRB) Commission. Section 373.69, F.S., provides for the creation of an
interstate administrative agency to promote interstate comity, remove causes of present and future controversies, equitably
apportion the surface waters of the ACFRB, and engage in water planning. Operational funding required by the Commission is
equally shared among the party states.

Board of Control for Southern Regional Education. Section 1000.32, F.S., promotes the development and maintenance of
regional education services and facilities in the southern states to provide greater educational advantages and facilities for the
citizens in the region. The states established a joint agency called the Board of Control for Southern Regional Education to
submit plans and recommendations to the states from time to time for their approval and adoption by appropriate legislative
action for the development, establishment, acquisition, operation, and maintenance of educational facilities in the region.

Regional Planning Councils. Sections 186.501 through 186.513, F.S., the “Florida Regional Planning Council Act,” provide
for the creation of regional planning agencies to assist local governments in resolving their common problems. The regional
planning councils are designated as the primary organizations to address problems and plan solutions that are of greater-than-
local concern or scope. Participants in these councils are required by statutes to contribute to the support of these programs.

Southern States Energy Compact. Section 377.711, F.S., enacted this compact into law joining the State of Florida and other
states to recognize that the proper employment and conservation of energy, and the employment of energy-related facilities,
materials, and products can assist substantially in the industrialization of the South and the development of a balanced economy
in the region. The State of Florida appropriates funds to support Florida’s participation in the compact.

Interstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators. Section 464.0095, F.S., enacted this compact into law
joining the State of Florida and other states with the general purpose to facilitate the states' responsibility to protect the public's
health and safety with regard to nurse licensure and regulation. This compact is additionally purposed with facilitating the
exchange of information among party states in the areas of nurse regulation, investigation, and adverse actions, promote
compliance with the laws governing the practice of nursing, and decrease redundancies in the consideration and issuance of
nurse licenses.
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Related Organizations

Organizations for which the state is accountable because the state appoints a voting majority of the board, but for which the
state is not financially accountable, are deemed “related organizations.” The state’s related organizations include certain
transportation authorities, hospital districts, port authorities, aviation authorities and a financing corporation. The state is not
financially accountable for any of these organizations; therefore, applicable financial data is not included in the state’s financial
statements.

Contact

Financial statements of the component units that issue separate statements and other financial statement-related information
may be obtained from:

Department of Financial Services

Bureau of Financial Reporting

Statewide Financial Reporting Section

200 East Gaines Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0364

Telephone: (850) 413-5511

Department Website: http://www.myfloridacfo.com

Joint ventures may be contacted directly for their financial statements.

B. Basic Financial Statements

The state’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed
by GASB. The basic financial statements of the state, including its component units, are presented in the required format
discussed below.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information
on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from its
discretely presented component units.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable to a specific function. Some functions may include
administrative overhead that is essentially indirect expenses of other functions. The state currently does not allocate those
indirect expenses to other functions. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function; (2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function; and (3) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not included in program revenues are reported in
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

C. Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned, while
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as they become susceptible to accrual, generally when they are both
measurable and available. Revenues collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year are considered available, with
the exception of certain tax revenues, which are considered available when collected within 30 days of year-end. For
governmental funds, certain long-term liabilities, such as compensated absences, due within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal year are expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources and are recognized within the applicable

65



2020 STATE OF FLORIDA CAFR

governmental fund. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
expenditures for insurance and similar services extending over more than one fiscal year generally are accounted for as
expenditures of the fiscal year of acquisition. Further, principal and interest on general long-term debt are recognized when
due.

D. Basis of Presentation
Major Funds

GASB Codification Section 2200, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the total
assets and deferred outflows of resources, total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses
for either fund category or the governmental and enterprise funds combined) for the determination of major funds. GASB
Codification Section 2200 further requires that the reporting government’s main operating fund (the General Fund) always be
reported as a major fund. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements and
detailed in the combining statements. The state reports the following major funds:

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund — a fund that accounts for the financial resources of the state, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. This is the state’s primary operating fund.

Natural Resources, Environment, and Growth Management — a special revenue fund that accounts for the operations of
various programs such as air pollution control, water quality assurance, ecosystem management, and marine resources
conservation. Transfers from other funds, pollutant tax collections, and federal grants are its major sources of revenue. Prior to
6/30/2018, this fund was reported as the Environment, Recreation, and Conservation Fund.

Public Education — a special revenue fund that includes funds used to operate education-related programs. Significant sources
of revenue for this fund are federal grants, transfers from the Florida Lottery, and utility taxes.

Health and Family Services — a special revenue fund that includes funds used to operate various health and family
service-related programs such as health care, elder affairs, and public assistance. Federal grants are the predominant sources of
revenue for this fund.

Transportation — a special revenue fund that accounts for the maintenance and development of the state highway system and
other transportation-related projects. It accounts for federal grants, motor fuel and aviation fuel taxes, automobile registration
fees, and other revenues that are used for transportation purposes.

Major Business-type Funds

Transportation — an enterprise fund that primarily accounts for operations of Florida’s Turnpike System.

Lottery — an enterprise fund that accounts for state lottery operations, which include sale of lottery tickets, payment of lottery
prizes, and transfers to the Educational Enhancement Trust Fund.

Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund — an enterprise fund that accounts for operations of the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe
Fund, which was created to help cover insurers’ losses in the event of a hurricane disaster.

Prepaid College Program — an enterprise fund that accounts for payments from purchasers of the Florida Prepaid College
Program. This program was created to provide a medium through which the cost of state post-secondary education may be paid
in advance of enrollment at a rate lower than the projected corresponding costs at the time of enrollment.

Reemployment Assistance — an enterprise fund that accounts for contributions, benefit payments, grants, loans, and investments
for the Unemployment Compensation Fund, which was created to pay reemployment assistance benefits to eligible individuals.
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Fund Types
Additionally, the state reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds

These proprietary-type funds are primarily used to report activities that provide goods or services to other funds or agencies
within the state, rather than to the general public. Internal service funds are classified into the following categories:

»  Employee Health and Disability — includes funds that account for state employees’ health and disability plans.

*  Data Centers — includes funds that account for services provided by data processing centers operated by various
agencies.

*  Communications and Facilities — includes funds that primarily account for services provided by the Department of
Management Services such as those related to the construction, operation, and maintenance of public facilities, and
management and operation of the SUNCOM (state communication) Network.

*  Other — includes funds that account for services provided to other state agencies such as legal services, records
management, and community services (inmate work squads).

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and, therefore, cannot be used to support
the state’s own programs.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds — funds that are used to report trust arrangements under which principal and income benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments including funds accounting for unclaimed property, federally
guaranteed higher education loans, contributions to a college savings plan, and various others.

Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds — funds that are used to report resources that are required to be held in
trust for the members and beneficiaries of the state’s pension plans and other employee benefit plans.

Agency Funds — funds that are used to report resources held by the state in a purely custodial capacity. For example, these
funds account for asset and liability balances related to retiree health care, taxes collected and held by the Department of
Revenue for other entities, and student funds held by the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.

Investment Trust Funds — funds that are used to report the external portion of investment pools reported by the state.

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The state’s cash includes cash on hand and on deposit in banks, including demand deposits, certificates of deposit, and time
deposits. Most deposits are held by financial institutions qualified as public depositories under Florida law. Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments. For the purposes of GASB Codification Section 2450, Cash Flows Statements,
pooled investments with the State Treasury are considered cash equivalents. Details of deposits are included in Note 2.

Investments

Florida Statutes authorize the state to invest in various instruments. The state reports investments in accordance with GASB
Codification Section 150, Investments.

Investments with the State Treasury are reported at fair value which is obtained from independent pricing service providers.
Independent pricing service providers use quoted market prices when available and employ various, sometimes proprietary,
multifactor models for determining a security’s fair value if it is not available from quoted market prices. Some securities,
including U.S. government, municipal bonds, and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, are priced using evaluated bid
prices. Evaluated bid prices are determined by taking bid prices and adjusting them by an evaluated adjustment factor derived
from the independent pricing service’s multifactor model. If values are not available using the above methods, secondary
methods such as non-evaluated mid-price and bid price are used. If no source of values is available, cost or last available price
from any source is used, or other pricing methodology as directed by the State Treasury.

Investments managed by the State Board of Administration (SBA) are reported in various funds. Investments of the Debt
Service Escrowed Fund, which meet the requirements of a legal or in-substance defeasance, are reported at cost. Investments of
the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund are reported based on amortized cost. Other investments managed by the
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SBA, including those related to the state’s defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans, are reported at fair value at
the reporting date.

For SBA-managed investments, fair values are obtained or estimated in accordance with the Global Pricing Guidelines
established with the SBA’s custodian, BNY Mellon Bank. BNY Mellon Bank uses a variety of independent pricing vendors and
designates certain vendors as the primary source based on asset type, class or issue. BNY Mellon Bank monitors prices
supplied by primary sources and may use a supplemental price source or change the primary price source if any of the
following occurs:

*  The price of a security is not received from the primary price source.

*  The primary price source no longer prices a particular asset type, class or issue.

*  The SBA or its portfolio investment manager challenges a price and BNY Mellon Bank reviews the price with the
vendor, who agrees that the price provided by that vendor may not be appropriate.

*  The price from the primary source exceeds BNY Mellon Bank’s price tolerance checkpoints and results in a vendor
comparison review where another source is deemed to be more appropriate by the BNY Mellon Bank.

When a portfolio includes securities or instruments for which BNY Mellon Bank does not receive fair value information from
its vendor price sources, BNY Mellon Bank uses a “non-vendor price source.” Examples include, but are not limited to, limited
partnerships or similar private investment vehicles that do not actively trade through established exchange mechanisms; other
private placements where there is limited or no information in the market place; and unique fixed income and equity
instruments. The SBA does not provide direction regarding the substitution of prices in such instances where securities or
instruments are in the portfolio of an investment manager appointed by the SBA. In such cases where the SBA directed the
purchase of such securities or instruments, BNY Mellon may obtain the non-vendor prices by contacting the SBA only if it is
not commercially reasonable to directly obtain the non-vendor price information from the broker of record, as identified by the
SBA.

For private market investments, where no readily ascertainable market value exists (including limited partnerships, hedge funds,
directly-owned real estate, and real estate pooled funds), fair values for the individual investments are based on the net asset
value (capital account balance) at the closest available reporting period, as communicated by the general partner and/or
investment manager, adjusted for subsequent contributions and distributions. The valuation techniques vary based upon
investment type and involve a certain degree of judgment. The most significant input into the net asset value of an entity is the
value of its investment holdings. The net asset value is provided by the general partner and/or investment manager and
reviewed by management.

Annually, the financial statements of all private market investments are audited by independent auditors. Private market
investments in which the SBA has a controlling interest are also required to be valued annually by independent, licensed
external appraisers selected by an appraisal management company retained by the SBA.

All derivative financial instruments are reported at fair value in the statements of net position. The instruments are adjusted to
fair value at least monthly, with valuation changes recognized in investment earnings. Gains and losses are recorded in the
statements of changes in net position as “net increase (decrease) in fair market value” during the period.

Because of the inherent uncertainty of the valuation using pricing methodologies other than the quoted market prices, the
estimated fair values may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed.

Investment detail is included in Note 2.
Inventories

Inventories primarily consist of expendable supplies. Inventories are recorded according to the consumption method as
expenditures when consumed. At the end of the fiscal year, inventory is reported as an asset and identified in fund balance as
non-spendable. The method used to determine the cost of inventories varies by agency responsible for the inventories.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are real, personal, and intangible property that have a cost equal to or greater than an established capitalization
threshold and have an estimated useful life extending beyond one year. For additional information, refer to Note 5.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

A consumption of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period is presented as a deferred outflow
of resources.
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Long-term Liabilities

Refer to Note 6 for information on pension and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liabilities; Note 8 for information on
bonds payable and certificates of participation; Note 9 for information on installment purchases, capital leases, and public-
private partnership agreements; and Note 10 for changes in long-term liabilities.

Compensated Absences Liability

Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for vacation and illness, as well as, for unused special
compensatory leave earned for hours worked on legal holidays and other specifically authorized overtime. Compensated
absences for annual leave are recorded as a liability when the benefits are earned. Compensated absences for sick leave are
calculated based on the vesting method. Within the limits established by law or rule, the value of unused leave benefits will be
paid to employees upon separation from state service. The amounts reported for compensated absences are based on current
year-end salary rates and include employer Social Security and Medicare tax and pension contributions at current rates.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.

Components of Net Position

The government-wide statement of net position classifies net position into the following categories: (1) net investment in capital
assets, (2) restricted, and (3) unrestricted. The “net investment in capital assets” component of net position consists of capital
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. “Restricted” net position is reported when constraints are placed on net position that are either (a) externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. “Unrestricted” net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” When both restricted and unrestricted resources are to be used for the same
purpose, the agency responsible for administering the resources determines the flow assumption used to identify the portion of
expenses paid from restricted resources. At June 30, 2020, the government-wide statement of net position reported a restricted
net position of $26.7 billion, of which $17.1 billion is restricted by enabling legislation.

Components of Fund Balance

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent. This includes activity that is not in a spendable form such
as inventories, prepaid amounts, and long-term portion of loans and notes receivable, net, unless the proceeds are restricted,
committed or assigned. Additionally, activity that is legally or contractually required to remain intact, such as a principal
balance in a permanent fund, is considered to be nonspendable.

Restricted fund balance has constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by an external party, such as the Federal
Government, or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Commiitted fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the
state’s highest level of decision-making authority, the Legislature and the Governor, i.e. through legislation passed into law.
Commitments may only be modified or rescinded by equivalent formal, highest-level action.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual amount of the General Fund not included in the three categories described above.
Also, any remaining deficit fund balances within the other governmental fund types are reported as unassigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the state’s
general policy to use restricted resources first. When expenditures are incurred for which unrestricted (committed or
unassigned) resources are available, and amounts in any of these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the state’s
general policy to spend committed resources first. However, the agency responsible for administering the resources determines
the flow assumption used to identify the portion of expenses paid from restricted resources.
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Fund Balances Classifications and Special Revenue by Purpose — GASB Codification Section 2200, Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, requires presentation of governmental fund balances and special revenue fund revenues by specific purpose.
In the basic financial statements, the fund balance classifications are presented in the aggregate. The table presented below
displays further detail of nonspendable fund balance and appropriation of resources existing at June 30, 2020 (in thousands).

Natural
Resources,
Environment, Health and Nonmajor
General and Growth Public Family Governmental
Fund Management Education Services Transportation Funds Total
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and Prepaid Items $ 9,550 $ 748 $ —  $ 27,068 $ 7,785 $ 2,884 $ 48,035
Long-term Receivables and Advances 2,409 — — — — — 2,409
Permanent Fund Principal — — — — — 4,028 4,028
Total 11,959 748 — 27,068 7,785 6,912 54,472
Restricted:
Grantors/Contributors 611 54,885 — 48,494 — 34,420 138,410
Enabling Legislation 35,871 10,611 100,111 68,345 50 297,101 512,089
Constitutional Provision — 76,100 382,227 — — 61 458,388
Creditors 10,268 3,490 737,952 — — 1,092,128 1,843,838
Federal Government 26,502 2,683,772 19,507 153,459 — 78,803 2,962,043
Total 73,252 2,828,858 1,239,797 270,298 50 1,502,513 5,914,768
Committed: 1,293,157 1,416,855 380,604 1,528,239 1,690,531 1,294,511 7,603,897
Unassigned: 7,864,662 — (858,577) — — — 7,006,085
Total Fund Balances $ 9,243,030 $ 4246461 $ 761,824 § 1,825,605 § 1,698366 $ 2,803,936 § 20,579,222

Section 215.32(2)(b)4.a., F.S., provides that the unappropriated cash balances from selected trust funds may be authorized by
the Legislature for transfer to the Budget Stabilization Fund and the General Revenue Fund through the General Appropriation
Act. The amounts indicated below were identified in the State's 2020 General Appropriations Act as being unappropriated

June 30, 2020, cash balances that are to be transferred to and from the funds indicated during the 2020-21 fiscal year (in
thousands).

Natural
Resources,
Environment, Health and Nonmajor
and Growth Public Family Governmental
General Fund Management Education Services Transportation Funds Total
Transfer to (from) Fund $ 139,500 $ (86,500) $ — 8 (45,000) $ — 3 (8,000) $ —
Transfer from Non-Governmental Funds 31,500 — — — — — 31,500
Total $ 171,000 $ (86,500) $ — 8 (45,000) $ —  § (8,000) $ 31,500

F. Interfund Activity and Balances

The effect of interfund activities, except those between funds reported as governmental activities and funds reported as
business-type activities, has been eliminated from the government-wide statements. In the fund financial statements, transfers
represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return or a requirement for repayment. Transfers are recorded
when a fund receiving revenue provides it to the fund which expends the resources. Transfers between funds are made to
accomplish various provisions of law.

Interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated from the statement of net position, except for the residual amounts due
between governmental and business-type activities.

For additional information, refer to Note 11.
G. Nonmonetary Transactions

The state participates in various activities that are, in part, represented by nonmonetary transactions. Examples include
nonmonetary assistance in the form of Federal grants, such as vaccines, Electronic Benefit Transfer cards for food assistance,
and donated food commodities. The state also acts as an agent for the United States Department of Agriculture in the
distribution of donated food commodities to qualifying organizations outside the state’s reporting entity. The fair value of these
items is reported in the governmental fund financial statements.
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State Attorneys and Public Defenders of the State of Florida are furnished certain office space and other services by counties
under the provisions of Chapter 29, F.S. Some counties also provide certain facilities and services to other officers and staff of
the judicial branch. The value of the facilities and services provided by the counties is not reported as revenue.

H. Operating and Non-Operating Revenues

Proprietary funds distinguish operating from non-operating revenues. Operating revenues are typically derived from providing
goods or services, and include all transactions involved in delivering those goods or services. These revenues are a direct result
of exchange-type transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Cash flow resulting from capital and related
financing, noncapital financing and investment activities are considered non-operating for reporting purposes.

I. Accounting and Reporting Changes

The state implemented GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. This
Statement postponed the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became
effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later.

The effective dates of certain provisions contained in the following pronouncements are postponed by one year:
»  Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations*
*  Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities
*  Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements*
*  Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period
*  Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests
»  Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations
¢ Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020
*  Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates
* Implementation Guide No. 2017-3, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions (and Certain Issues Related to OPEB Plan Reporting)
*  Implementation Guide No. 2018-1, Implementation Guidance Update—2018
*  Implementation Guide No. 2019-1, Implementation Guidance Update—2019
*  Implementation Guide No. 2019-2, Fiduciary Activities.

The effective dates of the following pronouncements are postponed by 18 months:
¢  Statement No. 87, Leases

*  Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases.

* The State of Florida implemented GASB Statements No. 83 and 88 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
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J. Net Position Reclassifications and Restatements

Net position at June 30, 2019 have been adjusted as follows (in thousands):

Pension and

Other Employee
Governmental Transportation Benefits
Activities Proprietary Fund Trust Funds
Net Position, June 30, 2019, as
previously reported $ 66,823,327 $ 12,299.986 $ 179,816,405
To decrease fund balance to correct
accounting errors. (159) (941)
To increase net position as result of change
in accounting principle.
To increase fund balance to correct
accounting errors. 485 941
To increase fund balance due to the
acquisition of Central Florida Health.
Net Position, June 30, 2019, as restated $ 66,823,812 $ 12,299,827 $§ 179,816,405
(Continued Below)
Component Units
University Nonmajor
of Florida Component Units
Net Position, June 30, 2019, as
previously reported $ 6,026,542 $ 26,781,915
To decrease fund balance to correct
accounting errors. (33,077)
To increase net position as result of change
in accounting principle. 6,000
To increase fund balance to correct
accounting errors. 28,456
To increase fund balance due to the
acquisition of Central Florida Health. 396,079
Net Position, June 30, 2019, as restated $ 6,422,621 $ 26,783,294

K. Budget Stabilization Fund

The State Constitution mandates the creation and maintenance of a Budget Stabilization Fund, in an amount not less than

5 percent nor more than 10 percent of the last complete fiscal year’s net revenue collections for the General Revenue Fund.
Monies in the Budget Stabilization Fund may be transferred to the General Revenue Fund to offset a deficit therein or to
provide emergency funding, including payment of up to $38 million with respect to certain uninsured losses to state property.
Monies in this fund are constitutionally prohibited from being obligated or otherwise committed for any other purposes, in
accordance with Section 216.222, F.S. Any withdrawals from the Budget Stabilization Fund must be restored from general
revenues in five equal annual installments, commencing in the third fiscal year after the expenditure, unless the Legislature

establishes a different restoration schedule, in accordance with Section 215.32, F.S.

The Budget Stabilization Fund had $1.57 billion in cash at June 30, 2020. During fiscal year 2019-20, the General Revenue
Fund was authorized to transfer $91.2 million to the Budget Stabilization Fund. There were no disbursements made from the

fund.
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Deposits

At June 30, 2020, the state’s deposits in financial institutions totaled approximately $2.7 billion for primary government and
$2.9 billion for discretely presented component units.

1. Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the state will
not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The state mitigates custodial credit risk by generally requiring public funds to be deposited in a bank or savings association that
is designated by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as authorized to receive deposits in the state and meets the collateral
requirements as set forth in Chapter 280, Florida Statutes (F.S.).

The CFO determines the collateral requirements and collateral pledging level for each Qualified Public Depository (QPD)
following guidelines outlined in Section 280.04, F.S., and Department of Financial Services Rules, Chapter 69C-2, Florida
Administrative Code. Collateral pledging levels include 25, 50, 110, and 150 percent of a QPD’s average daily deposit balance,
or, if needed, an amount as prescribed by the CFO. Section 280.13, F.S., outlines eligible types of collateral including direct
obligations of the United States (U.S.) Government, federal agency obligations fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government,
certain federal agency obligations, state and local government obligations, corporate bonds, and letters of credit issued by a
Federal Home Loan Bank. Also, with the CFO’s permission, eligible collateral includes collateralized mortgage obligations,
real estate mortgage investment conduits and securities or other interests in any open-end management investment company
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940. However, the portfolio of the investment company must be limited to
direct obligations of the U.S. Government and to repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such direct obligations of the
U.S. Government, and the investment company must take delivery of such collateral either directly or through an authorized
custodian.

In accordance with Section 280.08, F.S., if a QPD defaults, losses to public depositors are first satisfied with any applicable
depository insurance, followed by demands of payment under any letters of credit or sale of the defaulting QPD’s collateral. If
necessary, any remaining losses are to be satisfied by assessments against the other participating QPDs according to a statutory
based ratio.

At June 30, 2020, the following deposits were not secured pursuant to Chapter 280, F.S., and were exposed to custodial credit
risk because they were uninsured and (1) uncollateralized, (2) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution, or (3) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in
the state’s name (in thousands).

Schedule of Deposits with State Treasury
Exposed to Custodial Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2020
Bank Statement Balance (in U.S. $)

Custodial Credit Risk Primary Government Component Units

@) $ 106,930 § 710,949

(2) 10 225,755

3) — —
Total deposits subject to
custodial credit risk $ 106,940 $ 936,704

2. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of a deposit. Under Section
215.47, F.S., and subject to the limitations and conditions of the State Constitution or of the trust agreement relating to a trust
fund, moneys available for investment by the State Board of Administration (SBA) may be invested in fixed income obligations
or stocks denominated in foreign currency. The SBA has developed total fund investment policies for the investment of assets
in the Florida Retirement System (FRS) Pension Trust Fund and the Lawton Chiles Endowment Fund (LCEF) that set ranges on
investments by asset class in each fund. Under the FRS Pension Trust Fund and LCEF investment policy statements approved
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by SBA Trustees effective July 1, 2018, and June 17, 2014, respectively, foreign and domestic equity securities are included in
the global equity asset class. The FRS Pension Trust Fund and LCEF have target allocations to global equities of 53% and
71%, respectively, with policy ranges from 45-70% for FRS and 61-81% for LCEF, but within these ranges there are no limits
on the amount of foreign equity securities that are denominated in foreign currency. The FRS Pension Trust Fund is not limited
to holding securities in foreign currency only in the global equity asset class. All asset classes may hold non-U.S. securities,
depending on portfolio guidelines. The Florida Prepaid Program’s comprehensive investment plan limits investment in foreign
equities to 25% of total equities, with the target for total equities to be 70% of the actuarial reserve. In all cases, Florida law
limits the exposure to foreign securities held outside of commingled funds to 50% of the total fund. The investment plans may
be modified in the future if the SBA or Florida Prepaid adopts changes. This investment activity in foreign investments
resulted in deposits in foreign currency as of June 30, 2020, as illustrated in the following schedule (in thousands):

Schedule of Investments with State Board of Administration
Foreign Currency Deposits Held As of June 30, 2020

Bank Statement Balance (in U.S. $)

Florida Prepaid
FRS Pension Program and

Currency Trust Fund LCEF Investment Plan Total
Australian dollar $ 760 $ 163 § — 8 923
Brazilian real 920 18 — 938
British pound sterling 3,980 74 72 4,126
Canadian dollar 1,855 48 — 1,903
Chilean peso 260 — — 260
Chinese yuan renminbi 3,378 14 — 3,392
Czech koruna 16 — — 16
Danish krone 373 — — 373
Egyptian pound 22 22 — 44
Euro 26,969 3 7 26,979
Hong Kong dollar 7,021 13 1 7,035
Hungarian forint 79 185 — 264
Indian rupee 3,271 — — 3,271
Indonesian rupiah 298 12 — 310
Israeli shekel 332 — 2 334
Japanese yen 17,767 233 573 18,573
Kenyan shilling 321 — — 321
Kuwaiti dinar 1,137 — — 1,137
Malaysian ringgit 269 88 — 357
Mexican peso 391 167 — 558
Moroccan dirham 8 — — 8
New Taiwan dollar 7,035 80 — 7,115
New Zealand dollar 340 310 — 650
New Zimbabwe dollar 35 — — 35
Nigerian naira 1,118 — — 1,118
Norwegian krone 411 139 — 550
Pakistan rupee 206 — — 206
Philippines peso 140 93 — 233
Polish zloty 146 11 — 157
Qatari riyal 120 — — 120
Russian ruble 1,174 — — 1,174
Saudi Arabian riyal 411 — — 411
Singapore dollar 2,680 — — 2,680
South African rand 587 39 — 626
South Korean won 2,273 — — 2,273
Sri Lanka rupee — — — —
Swedish krona 603 12 — 615
Swiss franc 4,506 — — 4,506
Thailand baht 8 2 — 10
Turkish lira 259 13 — 272
United Arab Emirates ditham 298 — — 298
Vietnam dong 894 — — 894

Total deposits subject to

foreign currency risk $ 92,671 $ 1,739 §$ 655 §$ 95,065
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B. Investments

At June 30, 2020, the state’s investments reported in governmental and business-type activities and fiduciary funds totaled
$257.4 billion, consisting of pooled investments with the State Treasury in the amount of $29.7 billion and other investments in
the amount of $227.7 billion. The State Treasury also had holdings at June 30, 2020, of $4.3 billion for discretely presented
component units in total. These investments are not reported as part of the primary government and may be different from the
amounts reported by some component units due to different reporting periods. Other investments for discretely presented
component units, excluding those investments held by SBA, totaled $23.8 billion.

Pooled Investments with the State Treasury

Unless specifically exempted by statute, all cash of the state must be deposited in the State Treasury. The State Treasury, in
turn, keeps the funds fully invested to maximize earnings. In addition, the State Treasury may invest funds of any board,
association, or entity created by the State Constitution, or by law. As a result, pooled investments with the State Treasury
contains deposits from funds and component units of the reporting entity (internal portion) as well as deposits from certain
legally separate organizations outside the reporting entity (external portion). The external portion of pooled investments with
the State Treasury is reported in a governmental external investment pool.

Pooled investments with the State Treasury are not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Oversight of the
pooled investments with the State Treasury is provided by the Treasury Investment Council per Section 17.575, F.S. The
authorized investment types are set forth in Section 17.57, F.S.

Redemptions are on a dollar in/dollar out basis adjusted for distributed income. The fair value of the pooled investments with
the State Treasury is determined at fiscal year-end for financial reporting purposes. See Note 1E, Investments, for further detail
on fair value.

The State Treasury does not contract with an outside insurer in order to guarantee the value of the portfolio, or the price of
shares redeemed.

Per Section 17.61(1), F.S., the State Treasury shall invest all general revenue funds, trust funds, all agency funds of each state
agency, and of the judicial branch. As a result, state agencies and the judicial branch are considered involuntary participants in
pooled investments with the State Treasury. The total involuntary participation as of June 30, 2020, was $31.2 billion or 89%
of the pool.
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At year-end, the condensed financial statements for the Investment Pool maintained by the State Treasury were as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Schedule of Pooled Investments with State Treasury
Condensed Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2020
ASSETS
Current and Other Assets $ 35,379,603
Total Assets 35,379,603
LIABILITIES
Other Liabilities 3,028,319
Total Liabilities 3,028,319
NET POSITION
Net position held for Internal Pool Participants 31,568,569
Net position held for External Pool Participants 782,715
Total net position, ending $ 32,351,284
Condensed Statement of Changes of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2020

ADDITIONS
Net income (loss) from investing activity $ 1,413,644
DEDUCTIONS
Distributions paid and payable (1,413,644)
DEPOSITOR ACTIVITY
Deposits 129,772,189
Withdrawals (126,623,484)

Excess (deficiency) of deposits over withdrawals 3,148,705

Change in net position 3,148,705

Net position, beginning 29,202,579
Net position, ending $ 32,351,284
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The following table provides a summary of the fair value, the number of shares or the principal amount, ranges of interest rates,
and maturity dates of each major investment classification (dollars in thousands):

Schedule of Pooled Investments with State Treasury
Summary of Investment Holdings

Range of Interest

Par Fair Value Rates* Range of Maturity Dates
Commercial paper $ 50,000 $ 49,995 0.14% 7/29/2020
Money market funds 1,566,294 1,566,294 0.162% N/A
Repurchase agreements 2,511,885 2,511,885 0.070% - 0.130% 7/1/2020 - 7/24/2020
U.S. guaranteed obligations 7,334,493 7,485,897 0.125% - 8.500% 7/21/2020 - 4/1/2065
Federal agencies 6,038,422 5,949,986 0.070% - 18.001%  7/9/2020 - 8/25/2059
Bonds and notes - domestic 6,595,234 6,848265 0.001% -9.455% 7/1/2020 - 9/15/2119
Bonds and notes - international 1,010,010 1,061,090 0.250% -9.625%  7/13/2020 - 4/20/2055
Federal agencies discounted securities 1,809,009 1,805,569 0.095% - 1.900% 7/2/2020 - 3/25/2042
U.S. guaranteed obligations discounted securities 4,183,476 4,170,219 0.092% -2.511%  7/2/2020 - 11/15/2044
Commingled STIF 715,386 715,386 N/A N/A
Unemployment compensation 2,548,264 2,548,264 N/A N/A
Totals $ 34,362,473 § 34,712,850

* The coupon rate in effect at June 30, 2020, is reported. If a security is discounted, the purchase yield is reported.

The State Treasury records, as an investment, funds credited to the state’s account in the Federal Unemployment Compensation
Trust Fund pursuant to Section 904 of the Social Security Act. The fund is drawn upon primarily to pay reemployment
assistance benefits. This money is pooled with deposits from other states and is managed by the Federal Government. No
disclosures can be made of specific securities owned.
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The schedule below discloses the detail of the State Treasury holdings at fair value at June 30, 2020, as well as reconciliation to
the basic financial statements (in thousands):

Schedule of Pooled Investments with State Treasury

As of June 30, 2020
Investment type Fair Value
Commercial paper $ 49,995
Money market funds 1,461,359
U.S. guaranteed obligations 11,656,116
Federal agencies 7,306,148
Bonds and notes - domestic 6,781,188
Bonds and notes - international 996,547
Repurchase agreements 1,400,000
Commingled STIF 715,386
Unemployment compensation funds pooled with U. S. Treasury 2,548,264
Total investments excluding security lending collateral** 32,915,003
Lending collateral investments:
Commercial paper —
Repurchase agreements 1,111,885
Money market funds 104,935
Federal agencies 449,407
Bonds and notes - domestic 67,077
Bonds and notes - international 64,543
Total lending collateral investments 1,797,847
Total investments 34,712,850
Cash on deposit 664,594
Total State Treasury holdings 35,377,444
Adjustments:
Outstanding warrants (907,968)
Deposits in transit 2,159
SPIA Revolving Account™® (7,494)
Unsettled securities liability (315,010)
Reconciled balance, June 30, 2020 $ 34,149,131
Reconciliation to the basic financial statements (in thousands):
Unrestricted Pooled investments with State Treasury
Governmental activities $ 22,778,300
Business-type activities 4,048,567
Fiduciary funds 2,647,470
Component units 3,648,571
Component units timing difference (57,703)
Total unrestricted pooled investments with State Treasury 33,065,205
Restricted Pooled investments with State Treasury
Business-type activities 204,890
Component units 879,036
Total restricted pooled investments with State Treasury 1,083,926
Total pooled investments with State Treasury $ 34,149,131

* The SPIA Revolving Account is included as cash and cash equivalent by the agencies.
** This amount excludes the Florida Birth-Related Neurological Injury Compensation Association's (NICA) participation in

Treasury's Short Term Investment Fund (STIF). NICA's portion represents less than a tenth of a percent of the total
investments held at Treasury.
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investments at June 30, 2020.

Other Investments

Schedule of Other Investments

Other investments in various funds of the state are primarily managed by the SBA. The largest of these funds managed by the
SBA is the FRS Pension Trust Fund (Defined Benefit Pension Fund), whose total investments represented 73.0% of total other
Investments in the FRS Investment Plan Trust Fund (Defined Contribution Pension Fund)
represents 5.1% of total other investment, while investments in the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund and the Florida Prepaid
College Trust Fund represented another 6.4% and 7.1%, respectively, of total other investments. Section 215.47, F.S., allows
the SBA to invest funds in a range of instruments, including security lending agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, and
alternative investments (including limited partnerships and hedge funds).

The schedule below discloses other investments at fair value at June 30, 2020, as well as reconciliation to the basic financial
statements (in thousands):

As of June 30, 2020
Carrying Value'
Other funds
FRS Pension Managed Not managed
Investment types Trust Fund by SBA by SBA Total
Certificates of deposit $ — $ 3,044,834 $ 1,733 $ 3,046,567
Commercial paper 1,127,836 6,380,134 — 7,507,970
Money market funds 238,806 3,481,223 — 3,720,029
Repurchase agreements 800,000 1,650,000 — 2,450,000
U.S. guaranteed obligations 14,837,162 18,439,864 8,946 33,285,972
Federal agencies 8,169,761 1,292,402 4,369 9,466,532
Domestic bonds and notes 9,023,625 8,067,121 2,017,589 19,108,335
Commingled domestic bonds and notes funds/mutual funds — — — —
International bonds and notes 2,448,364 1,828,950 557 4,277,871
International bonds and notes mutual fund — — — —
Domestic stocks 48,275,740 2,644,778 88,804 51,009,322
Commingled domestic equity funds/mutual funds — 4,095,043 — 4,095,043
International stocks 31,129,943 761,864 6,114 31,897,921
Commingled international equity funds/mutual funds 7,089,845 2,318,559 — 9,408,404
Commingled real asset funds — 769,608 — 769,608
Alternative investments 28,780,594 — — 28,780,594
Real estate investments (directly owned) 9,752,973 — 720 9,753,693
Commingled real estate investments funds 2,243,510 — — 2,243,510
Self-Directed brokerage accounts — 817,186 — 817,186
Derivative instruments, net:’
Forward currency contracts (4,800) — — (4,800)
Futures (debt and equity) 21,583 — — 21,583
Option contracts — — 2,434 2,434
Swap contracts (946) — — (946)
Mutual funds — — 2,719,307 2,719,307
Deferred compensation annuities — — 14,720 14,720
Total investments excluding lending collateral 163,933,996 55,591,566 4,865,293 224,390,855
Lending collateral investments:
Certificates of deposit — 671,418 — 671,418
Commercial paper — 677,994 — 677,994
Money market funds 1,785,715 4,925 1,031 1,791,671
Repurchase agreements — 1,021,000 — 1,021,000
Federal agencies — 50,025 — 50,025
Domestic bonds and notes 44,759 — — 44,759
International bonds and notes — — — —
Total lending collateral investments 1,830,474 2,425,362 1,031 4,256,867
Total investments for all types $165,764,470 $ 58,016,928 $ 4,866,324 $ 228,647,722
% of total other investments 73 % 25 % 2%

! Investments of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund are reported based on amortized cost which approximates fair value. See the
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund disclosure on page 81 to obtain investment details of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund.
In addition, investments of the Debt Service Escrowed Fund, which meet the requirements of a legal or in-substance defeasance, are reported at cost.

2 Refer to Note 2.B.6. for detailed information regarding derivatives.
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Reconciliation to the basic financial statements (in thousands):

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary Component
activities activities funds Units' Total
Other investments $ 1,350,118 $ 8,590,711 $ — 3 551,680 $ 10,492,509
Restricted investments — 571,833 — — 571,833
Long-term investments 37,926 22,258,137 193,166,525 — 215,462,588
Security lending collateral® — — 1,830,474 — 1,830,474
Timing and other differences’ (35,982) (10,732) (48,530) 385,562 290,318
Total other investments $ 1,352,062 $§ 31,409,949 § 194,948,469 $ 937,242  § 228,647,722

' The column for Component Units presents investments managed by SBA for Component Units. For presentation of all other investments for Component
Units, see the Schedule of Other Investments For Discretely Presented Component Units.

2 Other investments and Restricted investments for Governmental and Business-type activities include security lending collateral. Refer to Note 2 B Schedule
of Other Investments and B(5) Schedule of Other Investments on Loan Under Security Lending Agreements for additional information.

® Differences between participant balances posted and actual investments. Some Component Units have fiscal year ends other than the state's year end of
June 30, 2020.

Certain investments included in the above schedule were pledged as collateral with the SBA’s futures and swaps clearing
counterparties. These investments are presented below (in thousands):

FRS Pension Trust Fund
Securities Pledged as Collateral for Futures and Swaps Contracts

As of June 30, 2020
Investment Type Fair Value
U.S. guaranteed obligations $ 118,767
Federal agencies 1,101
Total $ 119,868

In addition, cash and foreign currency required to open futures and swap contracts (i.e. initial margin) in the FRS Pension Trust
Fund may be pledged as collateral with the SBA’s futures and swap counterparties. Pursuant to these types of contracts, and
also pending foreign currency contracts and commitments to purchase (TBAs), the FRS Pension Trust Fund agrees to receive or
pay to the counterparties an amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the value of the contract. Such receivables and
payables are known as variation margin. All initial and variation margin amounts held by counterparties, and the variation
margins held by the FRS Pension Trust Fund as of June 30, 2020, are included in “Accounts receivable” and in “Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities”, respectively, on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. These amounts are presented in the
table below (in thousands):

FRS Pension Trust Fund
Cash and Foreign Currency Pledged as Collateral for Futures and Swaps Contracts

As of June 30, 2020
Fair Value

Margin receivable from counterparties:

Futures contracts $ 6,654
Swap contracts 5,187
Foreign currency contracts 2,092
Total margin receivable $ 13,933
Margin payable to counterparties:

Futures contracts $ 14,327
Swap contracts 224
Commitments to purchase (TBAs) 1,354
Total margin payable $ 15,905
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The FRS Pension Trust Fund also held short positions in investments at June 30, 2020. Short investment positions are reported
as liabilities on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. The schedule below presents the short investment positions at fair
value at June 30, 2020 (in thousands):

FRS Pension Trust Fund
Short Investment Position

As of June 30, 2020
Investment Type Fair Value
U.S. guaranteed obligations $ (27,400)
Federal agencies (37,204)

Total $ (64,604)

The SBA issued a separate report (financial statements and notes) pertaining to the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust
Fund (an external investment pool) within the state’s Investment Trust Fund for the period ended June 30, 2020. This report
may be obtained from the Chief Operating & Financial Officer, State Board of Administration of Florida, 1801 Hermitage
Boulevard, Suite 101, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850) 488-4406.

Component Units

The schedule below discloses other investments reported at fair value, as of June 30, 2020, for discretely presented component
units and a reconciliation to the basic financial statements (in thousands). Those investments held with the State Treasury as of
June 30, 2020, are excluded.

Schedule of Other Investments
For Discretely Presented Component Units

As of June 30, 2020

Investment type Fair Value
Certificates of deposit $ 33,713
Commercial paper 12,202
Money market funds 261,910
U.S. guaranteed obligations 3,821,705
Federal agencies 1,493,358
Domestic bonds & notes 7,469,505
International bonds & notes 699,284
Domestic stocks 1,469,211
International stocks 920,445
Real estate investments 162,650
Mutual funds 2,530,362
Investment agreements 4,953,319

Total other investments for all types $ 23,827,664

Reconciliation of fair value to the basic financial statements:

Other investments $ 17,358,197

Restricted investments 7,021,147

Less SBA Investments* (551,680)
Total other investment for component units $ 23,827,664

* Investment types for component units with investments held by SBA are disclosed on the Schedule of
Other Investments on page 79.

At June 30, 2020, 61.14% of total other investments for discretely presented component units belonged to the following major
component units: Florida Housing Finance Corporation, University of Florida, and Citizens Property Insurance Corporation.
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1. Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. Concentration of credit
risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the state’s investment in a single issuer.

Pooled Investments with the State Treasury

The State Treasury follows the investment guidelines set forth in Section 17.57, F.S., for reducing exposure to investment credit
risk. The State Treasury’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2020, were rated by the nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations (NRSRO) Standard and Poor